_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL Monday, 12 Aprll 2021 6.30 p-m.

To be held remotely, please use the following link to
access:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiQ94myD9cu1s3QpGP2R-

R D wn (< ZJ

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chair)

Councillor Chris Carlin

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Valerie Hill

Councillor Joan Lowe

Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh

Councillor June Roberts

Councillor Dave Thompson

Councillor Bill Woolfall

Councillor Geoff Zygadllo

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 511 8276 Ext. 16 8276 or
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 10 May 2021


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiQ94myD9cu1s3QpGP2R-MQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiQ94myD9cu1s3QpGP2R-MQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiQ94myD9cu1s3QpGP2R-MQ

ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No.
1. MINUTES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

20/00445/0OUT - Outline application, with all matters
reserved, for a B2/B8 development including ancillary office
space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) with associated loading
bays, HGV/car parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle
connections and associated infrastructure on land off
Newstead Road bounded by the London & Western Railway
& Ditton Brook, Widnes

20/00536/FUL - Proposed employment development
comprising 13 units totalling 2545 sq metres to provide E(g),
B2 & B8 uses on land to the west of junction between
Hardwick Road and Astmoor Road, Runcorn, Cheshire

21/00138/P3JPA - Prior notification for proposed change of
use from office to 19 no. flats (use class C3) (PRIOR
APPROVAL APPLICATION) First Floor and Ground Floor
Access, Former Co-op Building, Lugsdale Road, Widnes,
WAS8 6DJ

PLANS

11 - 56

57 - 80

81-88

89 -108

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Tuesday, 2 March 2021 held
remotely

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chair), Carlin, R. Hignett, V. Hill, J. Lowe,
C. Plumpton Walsh, June Roberts, Thompson and Woolfall

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Zygadllo
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. Jones, T. Gibbs, A. Plant, J. Eaton, G. Henry, P. Peak,
K. Thompson, L. Woodward and R. Cooper

Also in attendance: Councillor Wall, one member of the press and the Committee
meeting was streamed via You Tube

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
DEV31 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2021,
having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a
correct record.

DEV32 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV33 20/00153/FUL - PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
COMPRISING 249 DWELLINGS, RECONFIGURATION OF
GOLF  COURSE, DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
CLUBHOUSE AND ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS AND
ERECTION OF NEW CLUBHOUSE AND
GREENKEEPERS STORE, CREATION OF NEW
VEHICULAR ACCESSES, ROADS, CAR PARKING &
ANCILLARY DEVELOPMENT AT WIDNES GOLF CLUB,
HIGHFIELD ROAD, WIDNES, WAS8 7DT

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.




Page 2

The Case Officer advised that since the publication of
the AB Update List one more representation had been
received. This raised issues relating to the traffic survey
undertaken as well as drainage and increased flood risk
which were already dealt with in the Committee Report.
Following presentation of the application it was explained
why it was recommended for refusal and the fundamental
issues with the proposal were described, as outlined in
paragraph 8 of the report relating to the following:

e Greenspace / Strategic Greenspace / Potential
Greenway / Green Infrastructure / Health and
Wellbeing;

e Highways / Transportation;

¢ Flood Risk/Drainage; and

e Trees/Landscaping / Landscape Impacts

The Committee was addressed by Mr Peter Hurst,
who as a long-standing member of the Golf Club, spoke in
support of the application. He explained how the Club was
once thriving with people of all social backgrounds offering
various recreational activities to Members. Unfortunately, in
recent times the membership at the Club had declined to a
point where its existence was now threatened; he gave
examples of reasons why this had happened. He argued
that the Club would prosper if the application was approved
as new membership would be encouraged by the new
facilities. He also added that:

¢ |t was not unusual for a town’s golf club to be
situated outside its boundary;

e Widnes Golf Club was currently private land so
there was no direct benefit to the public as open
space;

e The proposal would benefit existing and future
residents of the Borough with its high quality
design and landscaping;

e |t was in a sustainable location;

¢ |t would bring affordable housing to the area and
local investment; and

e |t would relieve pressure to develop other green
spaces in the Borough.

In conclusion, he added that improvements in the
sport’s technology had changed the game over the past 60
years and the Club needed to respond to this.

Mr Morris, the applicant, then addressed the
Committee. He had been a member of Widnes Golf Club for
many years and now spoke as a Board Member in support




Page 3

of the application. He recognised the concerns made by the
public over the proposals in relation to the loss of green
space. He advised that the Club was in financial difficulty
and if the development did not go ahead the Club faced an
uncertain future and the facility could be lost altogether. He
explained the problems with the existing substandard 18
hole course in relation to quality and drainage and how this
had affected its appeal and that improvements needed to be
made. The Club had seen a reduction in membership
numbers over the years and now found itself in a
challenging position, being unable to maintain the Club or
invest in its future. He added that:

e The current course was now too small and sub-
standard;

e There was no policy requirement for Widnes to
have an 18 hole golf club;

e Players were prepared to travel to golf courses
elsewhere;

e Sports England and England Golf raised no
objections to the proposals;

e A high quality 9 hole course together with an
improved club house was better for the Town;

e The Club would offer flexibility to the communities
of Widnes offering memberships to all; and

e The proposals were in a highly sustainable
location.

Mr Morris concluded, requesting that the Committee
approve the application based on the following:

1) The development would secure the future of
Widnes Golf Club;

2) The proposal would ensure that the current
substandard 18 hole course would be replaced
with a superior high quality 9 hole course with
better facilities, offering long term sustainability;

3) The site is sustainably located and would relieve
pressure on Green Belt land elsewhere in the
Borough;

4) The technical issues outlined earlier, could be
adequately addressed via conditions; and

5) The proposal was acceptable as there was a
presumption in favour of sustainable development
within the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).

The Committee was then addressed by Councillor
Wall who spoke on behalf of local residents in objection to
the proposals. She began by providing some background to




Page 4

the history of Widnes in relation to its industrial heritage, in
particular with the chemical industry and the environmental
consequences of this on the Town over the years. She
stated also that the land had been bought by the chemical
industry and gifted to the Club for the benefit of local
residents.

She added that the numbers in opposition to this
development were in the thousands, local people did not
want a housing estate to take away the greenspace which
was in the heart of Widnes. It was noted that Derek Twigg
MP had raised his objections to the proposal. She argued
that:

The site benefits residents’ wellbeing;

The site was part of the green network;

The site was home to a variety of wildlife;

The site was prone to flooding;

There were many TPQO’s in place and these would
be lost as well as many other unprotected trees;
e The road network and traffic at junctions in the
area were already at full capacity and this
development would exacerbate the problem;
Children would be at risk walking to school;
Local schools were already oversubscribed;

The proposal was against planning policies;

The Golf Club would be the only beneficiary from
the development; and

e Golfers would use neighbouring Boroughs’
courses to play 18 holes, thus diverting money
and investment away from Halton.

Councillor Wall added that the Officer's
recommendation was to refuse the application and she
urged the Committee to agree with this.

Committee Members discussed the proposal after
hearing the speakers’ comments and the Officer’s
presentation. Officers made clear during the discussion that
the application was compliant in respect of affordable
housing policy requirements and that this together with the
availability of school places was addressed in the
Committee report.

Members discussed the unfortunate situation the
Club was in; the fact that the popularity of golf itself as a
sport was in national decline; the possibility of future
opportunities for grant funding for the Club, the loss of
protected trees; loss of recreational space, increased traffic
volumes in the locality: road safety; and the danger of flood




Page 5

risk to the site and other residential accommodation. The
recommendation to refuse was moved and seconded and
the Committee voted to refuse the application for the
reasons stated below.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused for the

for the following reasons:

1)

The proposed development would compromise many
of the amenity values of this designated Greenspace
and would segregate the inter-connecting
Greenspaces forming part of the wider Strategic
Greenspace identified on the Halton Core Strategy
Local Plan Key Diagram.

The applicant’'s golf needs assessment does not
demonstrate that the existing 18-hole golf course is
surplus to requirements. The proposed development
would not result in replacement provision which is
equivalent or better in terms of quantity and quality
nor does the development provide alternative sports
and recreational provision, the benefits of which
clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.
The proposed improvements at the Widnes Golf
Course site including the building of a new purpose-
built clubhouse and ancillary building forming a
greenkeepers store do not go anywhere near raising
the overall amenity value of the greenspace to justify
the 11ha of residential development being sought by
this application nor would it enhance and expand the
green infrastructure network.

Whilst the proposed residential development would
create an environment for future residents that would
be both of a high quality, a healthy environment and
would provide diversity in housing typologies, the
proposed development would have a negative impact
on the wider population in terms of impact on both
local green-infrastructure, designated green space
and golfing provision in the locality.

To allow the proposed development is therefore
considered to be contrary to the provisions of Policies
GE6 and GE10 of the Halton Unitary Development
Plan, Policies CS1, CS21 and CS22 of the Halton
Core Strategy Local Plan and Paragraph 97 of the
NPPF.

The proposed development would result in a
significant and unacceptable residual cumulative




Page 6

impact on the operational capacity of the adopted
highway network in the area due to the increased
number of vehicle movements generated by the
proposal particularly at the traffic signals junctions to
the east and west of the site.

The proposed residential layout along the frontage of
Liverpool Road would also create significant road
safety issues and is therefore considered to be
unacceptable.

To allow the proposed development is therefore
considered to be contrary to the provisions of Policies
BE1, TP14, TP15 and TP17 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and Paragraphs 108 and 109 of
the NPPF.

The applicant has demonstrated through the
hydraulic assessment and modelling the site is at risk
of flooding from Moss Brook during events with the
same or greater magnitude to the 1% Annual
Exceedance Probability (AEP) event. Paragraph 033
of the Environment Agency (EA) Flood Risk and
Coastal Change Guidance (Reference ID: 7-033-
20140306) and Paragraph 155 to 158 of the NPPF
indicate that although the Sequential and Exceptions
tests would not normally be necessary to be applied
to development proposals in Flood Zone 1, however
they should if other more recent information, indicates
there may be flooding issues now or in the future.
Therefore a sequential test should have been applied.

The sequential approach to locating development in
areas at lower flood risk should be applied to all
sources of flooding and inappropriate development in
areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by
directing development away from areas at highest
risk (whether existing or future). Paragraph 163 of the
NPPF goes on to state ‘Development should only be
allowed in areas at risk of flooding where, in the light
of this assessment (and the sequential and exception
tests, as applicable) it can be demonstrated that: a)
within the site, the most vulnerable development is
located in areas of lowest flood risk’. The proposed
development of ‘More Vulnerable’ infrastructure within
the modelled flood extent of Moss Brook shown in
Annex E of the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) is not
considered to be acceptable, particularly when there
is a significant area of the site which does not lie
within the modelled flood extents and would be more




Page 7

suitable for development of residential dwellings.

No compensatory storage analysis has been provided
along with the proposal to raise land levels. The site
is 25ha, with the majority of the site in fluvial flood
zone 1 and outside of the modelled 1 in 1000 year
flood outline for the ordinary watercourse, therefore
the residential development, as the most vulnerable
infrastructure, should have been placed in the area of
lowest risk and should not require a raised platform.

The proposed development would result in an
increased flood risk for properties on Woodland
Avenue which is unacceptable and clearly does not
follow NPPF or EA guidance by the proposed
development increasing flood risk elsewhere.

With regard to alterations to the watercourse, the site
is 25ha and there is clearly sufficient land to
otherwise place the development and provide the
space for a 1 in 3 slope for the watercourse.

The ‘Surface Water Drainage Strategy’ plan shows
development is proposed within 8m of a watercourse
which is against standard drainage bylaws and not
considered to be acceptable.

The applicant has not applied the Drainage Hierarchy
adequately as there have been no site specific
infiltration testing undertaken prior to discarding
infiltration.

No detail has been provided as to how riparian
responsibilities would work as dwellings are proposed
above a culverted watercourse.

In respect of flood risk and drainage, to allow the
proposal would be contrary to the provisions of Policy
PR16 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan, Policy
CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan and the
National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposed development would destroy many trees
including some of those forming part of the recently
made Tree Preservation Order which provide
significant amenity value as well as other individual
trees and tree groups covering a significant area of
the site. The proposed development also has the
potential to impact existing trees which would remain
and therefore compromise tree cover further. The




Page 8

proposed replacement planting scheme would have a
negative residual effect in respect of tree cover and
the proposal is not considered to reflect the essential
character of this designated Greenspace.

The site forms part of the Mersey Forest with the
focus being on landscape improvements. This
proposed development would result in the loss of a
significant amount of trees with the proposed
replacement planting scheme having a negative
residual effect in respect of tree cover thus not
representing a landscape improvement.

The proposal also fails to enhance and restore the
Ball O’Ditton Parkland Character Area by virtue of the
amount of residential development proposed on the
existing golf course as well as the loss of the key
woodland belts which are key characteristics.

In respect of trees, landscaping and landscape
impacts, the proposed development is considered to
be contrary to the provisions of Policies BE1, GE27
and GE28 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan,
Policy CS20 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan
and Paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

DEV34 20/00636/OUT - OUTLINE APPLICATION  WITH

LANDSCAPING RESERVED, FOR PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT OF 26 NO. APARTMENTS AND
GROUND FLOOR RETAIL UNIT FOR BOOKMAKERS
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND ANCILLARY SPACE
AT SPORTING FORD, 164 HOUGH GREEN ROAD,
WIDNES, WAS8 4PG

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

The Committee was advised that since the
publication of the agenda and as per the published AB
Update List, Highways Authority had responded to the
amendments and were now satisfied with the layout subject
to the additional conditions for car parking management
plan, offsite highways works relating to the access and
removal of a taxi rank, and a condition restricting the use of
the retail unit to a bookmakers.

Further comments had also been received from a
local Ward Councillor raising the following matters:




Page 9

e The height of the building and requested a
condition so that it could not be increased;

e Securing and controlling provision of car parking;

e A condition that materials, boundary treatments
and landscaping were submitted and approved;
and

e The need for further site investigations.

Members were advised that the scale and
appearance of the building had been submitted in full detail
and a condition was recommended so that it would be built
in accordance with the submitted plans, this would control
the height of the building. The Ward Councillor also wanted
to be sure that any cladding used was fire safe and that the
building had suitable means of escape, both of these
matters would be dealt with under the Building Regulations
for the project.

The Committee was advised that the consultation
period was due to expire the following day and that
delegated authority was therefore sought to determine the
application, in consultation with the Chair, once the
consultation had expired and considering any further
comments received.

The recommendation was moved and seconded and
the Committee agreed to approve the application, subject to
the conditions listed below which include the additional
conditions discussed above.

RESOLVED: That authority be delegated to the
Operational Director — Policy, Planning and Transportation,
in consultation with the Chair, to determine the application,
subject to any consultation responses and to the following:

a) alegal or other appropriate agreement relating to
securing financial contributions for open space;

b) conditions relating to the following:

1. Outline planning permission conditions setting out
time limits and reserved matters (BE1);

2. Condition specifying approved and amended
plans (BE1);

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking (BE1);

4. Materials condition, requiring the submission and
approval of the materials to be used (BE2);

5. Landscaping condition, requiring the submission




Page 10

and approval of landscaping details (BE2);

6. Boundary treatments to be submitted and
approved in writing (BE1);

7. Wheel cleansing facilities/strategy to be submitted
and approved in writing (BE1);

8. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to
throughout the course of the development (BE1);

9. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation of
properties/commencement of use (BE1);

10. Condition relating to the implementation of bin
store provision (BE1);

11.Requiring submission and agreement of site and
finished floor and site levels (BE1);

12. Site investigation, including mitigation/validation to
be submitted and approved in writing (PR14);
13. Condition relating to the implementation of cycle
store provision in accordance with details to be

submitted and approved (TP6);

14.Submission and agreement of biodiversity
enhancement features including bird/bat boxes,
insect/hedgehog houses etc (BE1 and GE21);

15.Requiring submission and agreement of foul and
surface water drainage including attenuation
(PR16);

16.Submission and agreement of Site Waste
Management Plan (WM8);

17.Requiring submission and agreement of electric
vehicle parking and charging point(s) details
(NPPF);

18. Grampian style condition requiring removal of taxi
rank;

19. Details of offsite highways works to be submitted
and approved prior to commencement, and
completed prior to first occupation (BE1);

20. Car parking management plan to be submitted
and approved prior to commencement and
implemented prior to first occupation (BE1);

21.Condition restricting the use of ground floor
bookmakers/betting shop.

that if the S106 Agreement or alternative
arrangement was not executed within a reasonable
period of time, authority be delegated to the
Operational Director — Policy, Planning and
Transportation, in consultation with the Chair or Vice
Chair of the Committee, to refuse the application.

Meeting ended at 7.22 p.m.




Page 11

APPLICATION NO:

20/00445/0UT

LOCATION:

Land off Newstead Road bounded by the
London and Western Railway and Ditton
Brook, Widnes.

PROPOSAL.:

Outline application, with all matters
reserved, for a B2/B8 development
including ancillary office space/staff
facilities (Use Class B1) with associated
loading bays, HGV/car  parking,
landscaping, pedestrian/cycle
connections associated
infrastructure.

and

WARD:

Ditton

PARISH:

None

APPLICANT:

AGENT:

Liberty Widnes LLC C/O Prologis UK Ltd

Avison Young, Norfolk House, 7 Norfolk
Street, Manchester, M2 1DW.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN:
Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy (2013)

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local
Plan (2013)

ALLOCATIONS:

Proposed Employment Development Site
— Unitary Development Plan Proposals
Map.

3MG Key Area of Change - Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

DEPARTURE No.

REPRESENTATIONS: No representations received from the
publicity given to the application.

KEY ISSUES: Development on an  Employment
Development Site, Highways and
Transportation, Flood Risk and Drainage.

RECOMMENDATION: Grant outline planning permission subject

to conditions

SITE MAP

Agenda Iltem 3a




[Ty
i
!

! Rease

= eserlt.irs

i

o

Hale Bank

)
3o

Middiclield B
Farm ‘*-..D“t‘, =)

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1 The Site

The site subject of the application is land off Newstead Road in Widnes which is
bounded by the London and Western Railway and Ditton Brook. The site is 7.32ha
in area. Vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access to the site is from Newstead Road
which has been constructed in recent years.

The site is designated as a Proposed Employment Development Site on the Halton
Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map.

The site is located within the 3MG Key Area of Change as shown in the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

The Council submitted the Submission Delivery and Allocations Local Plan to the
Planning Inspectorate (DALP) for independent examination on 5th March 2020. This
will replace the existing Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map in due course.
This proposes to designate the site as an Employment Allocation. This is now a
material planning consideration, however at this point carries little weight in the
determination of this planning application.



Page 13

1.2Planning History

The site has some planning history with the more recent applications being as follows:

e 96/00493/0OUT — Outline application for use of land for purposes within
Classes B1, B2 & B8 and provision of roads — Granted 05/04/2000.

e 01/00209/REM - Application for approval of Reserved Matters for construction
of (part) site access road — Granted 18/05/2001.

e (03/00728/FUL - Proposed erection of 13 No. industrial units (Classes B1, B2
and B8), with servicing, car parking, and ancillary development providing
15727 sq.m. approx. floor space — Granted 09/10/2003.

e 04/00637/FUL - Proposed erection of 9 No. industrial units with servicing, car
parking and ancillary development providing 10,000 sq.m of floor space —
Granted 13/08/2004.

e 05/00375/FUL - Proposed construction of 3 No. industrial units (B1, B2 and B8
use) with ancillary service areas and car parking — Granted 22/06/2005.

e 15/00428/OUT - Outline planning application with all matters reserved except
for means of access for a B2/B8 development comprising a maximum
floorspace of 43,321 sqgm including ancillary office space/staff facilities with
associated loading bays, HGV/car parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle
connections and associated infrastructure — Granted 12/01/2016.

e 16/00148/S73 - Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act to vary conditions 10 and 21 of planning permission
15/00428/OUT to facilitate access by Network Rail, related contractors and
parties for the purposes of accessing the rail network as detailed in letter dated
07/04/16 accompanying this application — Granted 27/05/2016.

e 18/00215/FUL - Proposed B2 / B8 storage / distribution unit with ancillary B1
office space and staff facilities, comprising a maximum floorspace of 9960 sqm
with associated loading bays, HGV / car parking, landscaping, pedestrian /
cycle connections and associated infrastructure — Granted 08/10/2018.

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal

Outline application, with all matters reserved, for a B2/B8 development including
ancillary office space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) with associated loading bays,
HGV/car parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle connections and associated
infrastructure.

The application form indicates that outline permission is sought for up to 34,200 sgqm
of gross internal floorspace.

2.2 Documentation

The application is accompanied by the associated plans (all viewable through the
Council’'s website) in addition to a Supporting Planning Statement, Design and
Access Statement, Flood Risk Assessment, Sustainable Drainage Statement,
Ecological Assessment, Geo-environmental Validation Report, Transport
Assessment, Framework Travel Plan, External Lighting Proposals.



Page 14

3. POLICY CONTEXT

Members are reminded that planning law requires for development proposals to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations

indicate otherwise.

THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

3.1 Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)

The site is designated as a Proposed Employment Development Site on the Halton

Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map.

The following policies within the adopted Unitary Development Plan are considered

to be of particular relevance;

BE1 General Requirements for Development;

BE2 Quality of Design;

E1 Local and Regional Employment Land Allocations;
E3 Primarily Employment Areas;

E5 New Industrial and Commercial Development;

GE21 Species Protection;

PR1 Air Quality;

PR2 Noise Nuisance;

PR4 Light Pollution and Nuisance;

PR14 Contaminated Land;

PR16 Development and Flood Risk;

TP1 Public Transport Provision as Part of New Development;
TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development;

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development;
TP12 Car Parking;

TP14 Transport Assessment;

TP15 Accessibility to New Development;

TP17 Safe Travel For All;

TP18 Traffic Management;

3.2Halton Core Strateqy (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Core Strategy are of particular relevance:

CS1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy;

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;
CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities;
CS7 Infrastructure Provision;

CS8 3MG;

CS15 Sustainable Transport;

CS18 High Quality Design;

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change;



Page 15

CS20 Natural and Historic Environment;
CS22 Health and Well-Being;

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk;
CS24 Waste.

3.3Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local
Plan are of relevance:

e WMS8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management;
e WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout of New Development.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Below are material considerations relevant to the determination of this planning
application.

3.4 Halton Borough Council — Design of New Commercial and Industrial Development
Supplementary Planning Document.

The purpose of this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is to complement the
Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP), to provide additional practical guidance and
support for those involved in the planning of new development within Halton Borough
to: -

a. Design new industrial and commercial developments that relate well and make a
positive contribution to their local environment;

b. Seek the use of quality materials which respond to the character and identity of
their surroundings and reduce environmental impact such as through energy
efficiency; and

c. Create better, more sustainable places

3.5Halton Borough Council — 3MG (Mersey Multimodal Gateway) Supplementary
Planning Document.

The document acts as a ‘supplementary planning document’ (SPD) to the existing
policies of the Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP). The UDP identifies the Ditton
Strategic Rail Freight Park (DSRF) as the opportunity to create a rail freight
interchange of regional significance; to underpin the economy of the region; and to
contribute to the Government’s objective.

3.6 National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in February 2019 to
set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied.

Achieving Sustainable Development




Page 16

Paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. At a very high level, the
objective of sustainable development can be summarised as meeting the needs of
the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

Paragraph 8 states that achieving sustainable development means that the planning
system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be
pursued in mutually supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure
net gains across each of the different objectives):

a) an economic objective — to help build a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity;
and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;

b) a social objective — to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the
needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe
built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and
future needs and support communities’ health, social and cultural well-being; and

c) an environmental objective — to contribute to protecting and enhancing our
natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping
to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and
pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving to a low
carbon economy.

Paragraph 9 states that these objectives should be delivered through the preparation
and implementation of plans and the application of the policies in this Framework;
they are not criteria against which every decision can or should be judged. Planning
policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding development towards
sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local circumstances into account,
to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.

Paragraph 10 states so that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at
the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
As set out in paragraph 11 below:

The Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Paragraph 11 states that for decision-taking this means:

¢) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or



Page 17

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Decision-making

Paragraph 38 states that local planning authorities should approach decisions on
proposed development in a positive and creative way. They should use the full range
of planning tools available, including brownfield registers and permission in principle,
and work proactively with applicants to secure developments that will improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every
level should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible.

Determining Applications

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires for planning permission to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Decisions on application should be made as quickly as possible
and within statutory timescale unless a longer period has been agreed by the
applicant in writing.

3.7 Other Considerations
The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First Protocol
of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a persons rights to the peaceful
enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act which sets out
his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for the home. Officers consider
that the proposed development would not be contrary to the provisions of the above
Articles in respect of the human rights of surrounding residents/occupiers.

4. CONSULTATIONS SUMMARY - FULL RESPONSES CAN BE LOCATED AT
APPENDIX 1.

Highways and Transportation Development Control — No objection.

Contaminated Land Officer — No objection.

Lead Local Flood Authority — No objection.

Environmental Protection — No objection.

Regeneration — No objection.

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — Ecology and Waste Advisor — No
objection.

Health and Safety Executive — No objection.

Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council — No objection.

Environment Agency — No objection.

Natural England — No objection.

Cadent Gas — No objection.

Network Rail — No observations received at the time of writing this report.

Halebank Parish Council — No observations received at the time of writing this report.



Page 18

5. REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was advertised by a press advert in the Widnes and Runcorn Weekly
News on 03/09/2020, three site notices posted on 27/08/2020 and one hundred and
sixty five neighbour notification letters sent on 27/08/2020.

5.2No representations have been received from the publicity given to the application.

6. ASSESSMENT

6.1 Principle of Development

Paragraph 47 of NPPF states that applications for planning permission be determined
in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. It is considered that the development plan policies referenced are in
general conformity with the NPPF and full weight should be given to these.

The site is designated as a Proposed Employment Development Site on the Halton
Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map. The site is specifically identified in Policy
E1 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan as the “Ex. Sleeper Depot, Ditton
Junction” as part of wider site reference 242 for the provision of 17.24 hectares for
B1, B2 and B8 uses.

The site is located within the 3MG Key Area of Change as shown in the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan with the relevant policy being CS8. Within the 3MG
Supplementary Planning Document, the application site is referred to as Site D with
the most appropriate uses being B1, B2 and B8.

The application is in outline form with all matters reserved for future consideration.
The application seeks to establish the principle of B2/B8 development including
ancillary office space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) which accords with the site
designation on the proposals map, the site’s location with the 3MG Key Area of
Change and the 3MG Supplementary Planning Document.

The application is accompanied by an illustrative masterplan showing a distribution
warehouse which would be sympathetic to the surrounding uses and the area as a
whole. Access to the site is provided from Newstead Road via the A5300/A562
junction. Whilst matters such as layout, appearance, scale and landscaping are
reserved for future consideration, it is considered that a suitable form of development
can be accommodated on the site in accordance with planning policy.

It is should also be noted that outline planning permission for B2/B8 development has
been granted on this site previously, however this has now lapsed.

The proposed development of the site for a B2/B8 development including ancillary
office space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) with associated loading bays, HGV/car
parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle connections and associated infrastructure is
considered to be acceptable in principle in accordance with Policy E1 of the Halton



Page 19

Unitary Development Plan, Policy CS8 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan and
the 3MG Supplementary Planning Document.

6.2 Highways and Transportation

The proposed development would be accessed from a single highway access from
the A5300/A562 junction which serves existing businesses off Newstead Road and
is the responsibility of Knowsley Council. The internal estate roads within Halton are
adopted by Halton Borough Council. Whilst access is reserved for future
consideration, the Council must be satisfied that a suitable solution can be achieved.

The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment. Knowsley Council have
commented that under normal circumstances, they would not accept the 2015 traffic
count for the A5300 Knowsley Expressway/A562 Speke Road part signalised grade
separated roundabout junction due to it being too out of date, particularly in light of
the highway changes to the road markings that were undertaken since then, and
would have requested a revised count be carried out. However, it is acknowledged
that during current covid lockdown restrictions it would be inappropriate to do this due
to reduced traffic levels on the network and therefore the use of the 2015 count data
factored up to the development opening year is accepted on this occasion.

They also note that the total floorspace for both phase 1 and phase 2 of the
development is slightly less than the previous 2015 outline consent that has
subsequently lapsed, and that phase 1 has been treated as a committed development
in the Transport Assessment (TA) as it has been built but is currently unoccupied.
The trip rates assuming 100% B2 use for phase 1 are accepted.

Under the worst case scenario, Knowsley Council conclude that although some of
the A5300/A562 junction links are approaching capacity in both 2022 and 2027, and
the A562 westbound off-slip is over capacity, the introduction of the development
would not have a significant increase on the operation of the junction as the highest
increase is 3%. The degree of saturation of the A562 westbound off-slip would be the
same with and without the development. In addition there would only be a minor
increase in vehicle queuing of up to 6 vehicles on all links. The junction does include
Microprocessor Optimised Vehicle Actuation (MOVA) that was in place prior to 2015
when the traffic count was undertaken and it is acknowledged that this would result
in slightly better results on the highway network than the traffic model can predict.

Knowsley Council have raised no objection to the outline planning application but
have requested the attachment of a planning condition to remove permitted
development rights, to prevent the increase of any building floor space on the site
(including mezzanine floor areas) over and above that stated in the current
application to ensure that the proposed development does not have a severe impact
on the road network in Knowsley.



Page 20

The Council's Highway Officer has not raised an objection to the proposed
development based on highway impact on the adopted highway in Halton.

The Council’'s Highway Officer has made observations on the applicant’s illustrative
masterplan and does not have any objections to the vehicle parking provision
indicating that there would be sufficient space for disabled parking spaces and
electric vehicle charging points. Whilst the illustrative masterplan plan does not show
clear information in regard to cycle parking, it is considered that scope exists within
the scheme to secure, covered and located cycle parking in a convenient and visible
position for cycle safety to encourage usage could be achieved. This can be secured
by condition.

The Council’s Highway Officer has made observations on the layout of the proposed
site as shown on the illustrative masterplan as set out in their consultation response
in Appendix 1. Whilst amendments to the layout shown are suggested, the
conclusion is that a suitable layout can be achieved when a reserved matters
application dealing with layout and access is submitted.

The granting of an outline planning permission would be conditional on a reserved
matters application being made including both layout and access. Any conditions
relating to those matters would be attached at the reserved matters stage.

In conclusion, it is considered that a suitable highway and transportation solution for
the amount of development sought can be presented at a reserved matters stage
based on the amount of development sought to ensure compliance with planning

policy.
6.3Flood Risk and Drainage

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and a
Sustainable Drainage Statement (SDS). These have been reviewed by the Lead
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and the Environment Agency (EA).

The LLFA is satisfied that the proposed development would likely be at low risk of
flooding from fluvial, tidal and groundwater sources. With regards to surface water
flood risk and drainage the LLFA would not accept the current drainage strategy
proposed as it is designed to attenuate up to the 100 year +20% climate change
allowance, rather than the 100 year + 40% climate change allowance, which is the
standard the Council would expect drainage strategies to be designed to. The LLFA
has also found the SDS document to lack details of how the potential impacts of tidal
locking on the flap valve (which the site discharges to) was considered and measures
taken as part of this proposal to reduce the potential impacts of tidal locking at the



Page 21

proposed site with a similar factor of safety allowance for tidal locking as for unit 1 on
the adjacent site.

Taking in to account the above mentioned issues, the LLFA would expect, based
upon the current drainage layout plans provided, the increase in attenuation required
to include the increase in climate change allowance and any storage for tidal locking
to be able to fit within the parking areas. The LLFA advise that this can be secured
by conditions.

The EA are satisfied that the submissions made demonstrate that the proposed
development would not be at an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood risk
elsewhere. They advise that the mitigation measures outlined in the FRA should be
secured by condition as set out in their consultation response located in Appendix 1.

The attachment of the suggested conditions would ensure that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of flood risk and drainage in compliance with Policy PR16 of the
Halton Unitary Development Plan, Policy CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

6.4 Noise

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer acknowledges that the application site is
located within an established commercial area and has benefitted from a previous
outline planning permission for B2/B8 development.

The closest noise sensitive area is Lovell Terrace, some 135m south of the
development site. It is not expected that a development of this nature would cause
a loss of amenity in respect of noise once operational, though issues surrounding
vehicle movement can sometimes occur if tonal manoeuvring alarms are used on
vehicles as opposed to broadband / white sound alarms. The Council’s
Environmental Health Officer suggests that this should be secured by condition along
with a restriction on construction hours as set out in their consultation response.

Based on the above and the attachment of the suggested conditions, the proposal is
considered acceptable from a noise perspective in compliance with Policies BE1 and
PR8 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policy CS23 of the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

6.5 Ground Contamination

The application is accompanied by a Geo-Environmental Validation Report.

The Council's Contaminated Land Officer and the Environment Agency have
reviewed the supporting document which summarises the work undertaken under a
previous permission to investigate and remediate the site.



Page 22

Contamination, a result of the former site use as a timber treatment works (creosoting
of railway sleeper timbers), was identified and determined to require remediation.
Significant earthworks were undertaken to remove foundations and other in ground
obstructions and create a level development platform. A programme of in situ
treatment was completed to reduce the level of risk posed to controlled waters by the
creosote contamination. These works were agreed to by the Council and the
Environment Agency and the verification reporting accepted, the works having met
the remedial objectives.

The current development proposals are in line with the intended use as set in the
original risk assessment for the site and therefore the remediation already undertaken
and approved means the site is suitable for use.

The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has stated that the only remaining item is
to undertake a piling risk assessment (secured by condition), as there is some
residual contamination on site and it will be necessary for the applicant to
demonstrate that the proposed works will not increase the risk to controlled waters,
particularly the deeper aquifer in the underlying sandstone.

The Environment Agency has stated that, whilst they are satisfied that no further
works are required at this current time in respect of controlled waters, they have
suggested planning conditions which secure a piling risk assessment, the dealing of
unidentified contamination and no drainage system for the infiltration of surface water
to ensure controlled waters are adequately protected during the development of the
site.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered acceptable from a ground
contamination perspective subject to the attachment of the suggested conditions in
compliance with Policy PR14 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policy
CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.6 Habitats Requlation Assessment

The following European designated sites are adjacent to the development site:

e Mersey Estuary SPA,;
e Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

The Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) undertaken by the Council’s Ecological
Advisor as set out in Appendix 1 is adopted by the Council as its own assessment.

The conclusion of this assessment is that with mitigation/preventative measures
secured by condition (production and implementation of a Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP)), there will be no adverse effect upon the integrity of
European sites.



Page 23

Natural England have been consulted on the HRA and have raised no objection
subject to appropriate mitigation in the form of a Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP) being secured.

6.7 Ecology

The application is accompanied by an Ecological Assessment Report which has been
reviewed by the Council’s Ecological Advisor.

The Ecological Assessment Report highlights that the proposals would affect a
Priority Habitat (namely Open Mosaic Habitats on Previously Development Land).
The Council’s Ecological Advisor has advised that compensation should be secured.

As noted in the consideration of application 15/00428/OUT, the loss of habitat was
regrettable, however the wider benefits of the scheme in terms of securing
redevelopment of previously developed land and securing potential future jobs for the
Borough outweighed any harm resulting from such loss and that on-site mitigation
and replacement planting were considered to have been maximised.

It is noted that the site has now been remediated to create a level development
platform and the Ecological Assessment Report is suggesting that the creation of a
green wall on the warehouse building would go some way towards mitigating for the
loss of opportunities available to wildlife on site.

Having regard for the site history and the suggestion made in the Ecological
Assessment Report for the creation of a green wall, along with a replacement planting
scheme, Officers consider that the proposal would on balance be acceptable.

The proposed development would result in the loss of bird breeding habitat. To
mitigate for this loss, a condition securing bird nesting boxes should be attached.
Protection from tree felling, scrub clearance, vegetation management, ground
clearance and/or building works during the breeding bird season should also be
secured by condition

The habitats on site are suitable for badger and hedgehog. Badger are protected,
whilst hedgehog is a Priority Species. A condition securing the following reasonable
avoidance measures should be put in place to ensure that there are no adverse
effects on them:

o A pre-commencement check for badger and hedgehog;

o All trenches and excavations should have a means of escape (e.g. a ramp);

o Any exposed open pipe systems should be capped to prevent mammals
gaining access; and

o Appropriate storage of materials to ensure that mammals do not use them.



Page 24

As recommended by the applicant’s ecological consultant, a pre-commencement
inspection of the adjacent stretch of Ditton Brook should be undertaken as a precaution
and be secured by condition.

In respect of reptiles and amphibians, a condition securing the following reasonable
avoidance measures should be put in place to ensure that there are no adverse effects
on them:

o Existing vegetation on the site will be gradually cut and removed under
ecological supervision to encourage any amphibians / reptiles present to
move away from the affected areas;

o The working area, together with any storage areas, will be kept clear of
debris, and any stored materials will be kept off the ground on pallets so as
to prevent amphibians / reptiles from seeking shelter or protection within
them; and

o Any open excavations (e.g. foundations / footings / service trenches etc) will
be covered with plywood sheeting (or similar) at the end of each working
day. The edges of these sheets will be covered with a thick layer of topsail
or similar) to prevent amphibians / reptiles from seeking shelter beneath
them. Any excavation must be in-filled and made good to ground level with
compacted stone or similar at the earliest opportunity, so as to remove any
hazard to amphibians / reptiles.

Invasive species (Indian balsam) are present within the site boundary. Indian balsam
is listed on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act. A condition securing its
management / eradication is suggested.

Habitats adjacent to the site may provide foraging and commuting habitat for bats.
Lighting for the development may affect the use of these areas so a lighting scheme
which protects ecology and does not result in excessive light spill onto the adjacent
habitats is suggested.

The attachment of conditions securing the above would ensure that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of ecology in compliance with Policy GE21 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and Policy CS20 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.8 Lighting Impacts

The application is accompanied by an External Lighting Proposals Report. This
report is an indicative scheme of external lighting for various areas of the
development including associated car parking, lorry/service yard, access road and
landscaping.

It is noted that design factors in the report include energy usage, effect of light spillage
on the surrounding neighbourhood and spill of light into the night sky. It also states
that the lighting design would be sensitive and coherent with the principles set out
with the ILP (Institute of Lighting Professionals) reduction of light pollution, BSEN
12464-2 and other institutional guides for exterior lighting.



Page 25

It is considered that a detailed scheme for lighting which is sympathetic to its
surroundings and also provide protection for ecology as set out in 6.7 can be secured
by condition. This would ensure compliance with Policies GE21 and PR4 of the
Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policies CS20 and CS23 of the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

6.9Risk

Policy PR12 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan states that development on land
within consultation zones around notified COMAH sites will be permitted provided
that all of the following criteria can be satisfied:

a) The likely accidential risk level from the COMAH site is not considered to be
significant.

b) Proposals are made by the developer that will mitigate the likely effects of a
potential major accident so that they are not considered significant.

Whilst being within the consultation zone, the individual accidental risk level does not
exceed 10 chances per million in a year. The proposal is therefore considered to
accord with Policy PR12 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan.

It should also be noted that the HSE does not advise against the granting of planning
permission on safety grounds in this case.

6.10 Health and Well-Being

Policy CS22 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan states that healthy environments
will be supported and healthy lifestyles encouraged across the borough by ensuring
that applications for large scale major developments are supported by a Health
Impact Assessment (HIA) to enhance potential positive impacts of development and
mitigate against any negative impacts.

The application is accompanied by a HIA in accordance with the policy. This
assessment demonstrates that the delivery of the proposed development will have
predominantly positive health impacts within the Borough, through tackling
deprivation, education and awareness, providing employment to tackle financial
issues and mental well-being within local residents.

In order to maximise the health and well-being benefits associated with the proposals,
a number of actions are recommended. None are considered to justify further
planning intervention by planning condition or any other means.

The proposal is considered to be compliant with Policy CS22 of the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.



Page 26

6.11 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

Policy CS19 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan outlines some principles which
will be used to guide future development in relation to sustainable development and
climate change.

NPPF is supportive of the enhancement of opportunities for sustainable development
and it is considered that any future developments should be located and designed
where practical to incorporate facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low
emission vehicles.

The incorporation of facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission
vehicles is realistically achievable for this development and the suitability of a detailed
scheme would be considered at the reserved matters and any conditions attached at
that point.

The Design and Access Statement accompanying the application includes a section
on sustainability. This indicates that the building will aim to achieve BREEAM Very
Good rating, through the use of energy efficient, water efficient and sustainable waste
management.

The energy and water efficiency measures identified meet the requirements of bullet
points 3 to 5 of Policy CS19 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan, however, it is
noted that the development aims to meet BREEAM rating very good, whereas bullet
point 2 of the policy encourages BREEAM rating excellent. The policy encourages
this rather than making it a requirement. It is not considered that a refusal on this
basis could be sustained especially given the wider benefits of the scheme in terms
of securing redevelopment of previously developed land and securing potential future
jobs for the Borough.

Based on all the above, the proposal is considered compliant with Policy CS19 of the
Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.12 Waste Management

Policies WM8 and WM9 of the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan are
applicable to this application along with policy CS24 of the Halton Core Strategy Local
Plan. In terms of waste prevention, construction management by the applicant will
deal with issues of this nature and based on the development cost, the developer
would be required to produce a Site Waste Management Plan. The Council’s Waste
Advisor has stated that the submission of a Waste Audit / Site Waste Management
Plan should be secured by condition.

In terms of on-going waste management, Officers consider that the site is of a
sufficient dimension to allow for such provision to be made. The proposed layout
would be considered at reserved matters stage.



Page 27

The proposal is considered to be compliant with policies WM8 and WM?9 of the Joint
Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan and policy CS24 of the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

6.13 Planning Balance

There is a presumption in favour of granting sustainable developments set out in
NPPF where the proposal is in accordance with an up-to-date development plan.

Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole.

It is considered that the development plan policies referenced are in general
conformity with the NPPF, therefore up-to-date and full weight should be given to
these.

As noted in paragraph 6.7, the loss of priority habitat is regrettable, however the wider
benefits of the scheme in terms of securing redevelopment of previously developed
land and securing potential future jobs for the Borough outweighs any harm resulting
from such loss and that on-site mitigation and replacement planting are considered
to have been maximised. It is considered that the proposal is acceptable and that
this proposal represents sustainable development which is in accordance with an up-
to-date development plan.

7. CONCLUSIONS

The proposal would bring forward B2/B8 development on a Proposed Employment
Development Site in accordance with the Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map
and the site’s location with the 3MG Key Area of Change and the 3MG Supplementary
Planning Document.

The site is sufficiently distant for residential properties to ensure that amenity would
not be unduly compromised and the Council’s Environmental Health Officer raises no
objection on the grounds of noise.

Highways Officers at both Halton Borough Council and Knowsley Council are
satisfied that the amount of development proposed would not have a severe highway
impact and that a satisfactory layout and access arrangement can be achieved at the
reserved matters stage.

Both the Council’s Contaminated Land Officer and the Environment Agency raise no
objection to the proposed development and are satisfied that the conditions
suggested would ensure that the proposed works will not increase the risk to
controlled waters.



Page 28

The Lead Local Flood Authority and the Environment Agency are satisfied that there
would not be at an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood risk elsewhere
and that a satisfactory drainage solution can be achieved by condition.

The loss of priority habitat in the form of Open Mosaic Habitats on Previously
Development Land is regrettable, however the wider benefits of the scheme in terms
of securing redevelopment of previously developed land and securing potential future
jobs for the Borough is considered to outweigh any harm resulting from such loss and
that on-site mitigation and replacement planting were considered to have been
maximised. In respect of other ecological matters, suggested conditions would
ensure that the proposal is acceptable.

As the proposal is an outline application with all matters reserved, it is considered
that a satisfactory solution can be achieved at the reserved matters stage to ensure
the delivery of sustainable development of an appropriate design quality. The
proposal is considered to accord with the Development Plan.

8. RECOMMENDATION

Grant outline planning permission subject to conditions:

9. CONDITIONS

Time Limit — Outline Permission.

Submission of Reserved Matters.

Development Parameters.

Floorspace Restriction.

Removal of Permitted Development Rights.

Restriction on Construction Hours - (Policy BE1).

Vehicle Manoeuvring Alarm details — (Policy BE1).

Restriction on External Storage — (Policy E5).

9. Piling Risk Assessment — (Policies PR14 and CS23).

10. Dealing with Unidentified Contamination — (Policies PR14 and CS23).

11.No drainage system for infiltration of surface water — (Policies PR14 and
CS23).

12.Sustainable Urban Drainage System — (Policies PR16 and CS23).

13. Verification of Sustainable Urban Drainage System — (Policies PR16 and
CS23).

14.Implementation of Mitigation Measures set out in the Flood Risk Assessment
— (Policies PR16 and CS23).

15. Construction Environmental Management Plan — (Policies BE1, GE21 and
CS20).

16.Bird Nesting Boxes Scheme — (Policies GE21 and CS20).

17.Breeding Birds Protection — (Policies GE21 and CS20).

18.Reasonable Avoidance Measures — Badgers and Hedgehogs — (Policies

GE21 and CS20).

NG RWON =~



Page 29

19.Reasonable Avoidance Measures — Reptiles and Amphibians — (Policies
GE21 and CS20).

20.Pre commencement inspection of Ditton Brook — (Policies GE21 and CS20).

21.Scheme detailing the installation of green walls to provide habitat for
invertebrate species and planting scheme of native species of shrub, and
grassland and wildflower mixes on the grassed area, native shrub and
grassland species — (Policies GE21 and CS20).

22.Scheme for the management / eradication of Indian Balsam.

23.Lighting Scheme — (Policies BE1, GE21, PR4, CS20 and CS23).

24 \Waste Audit — (Policy WM8).

Informatives

1. Environment Agency Informative.
2. Cadent Gas Informative

10.BACKGROUND PAPERS

The submitted planning applications are background papers to the report. Other
background papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are open to
inspection by contacting dev.control@halton.gov.uk

11.SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019);

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015; and

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively with
the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.

APPENDIX 1 - Full Consultation Responses.

1.

Highways and Transportation Development Control

TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT

As | previously stated in the original planning response the modelling for the A562 WB
Off-slip uses, as previously agreed with Knowsley Borough Council, 2015 figures with
a growth factor applied. Whilst the figures presented indicate a worrying over capacity
at this stretch of slip road and on the Circulatory E and the A5300, we would usually
allow for small percentage change in traffic from a development as being ‘within


mailto:dev.control@halton.gov.uk

Page 30

normal daily variation’ limits. However, this is sometimes considered differently where
it pushes a junction over capacity or makes an existing problem significantly worse.

Looking at the figures in the TA, even if we did consider it this way, there seems to be
sufficient space available for an increase in the level of queuing on the circulatory (15
max in the report) to allow more of the green time to the off-slip and less to the
circulatory and therefore development impact is likely to be minimal. This is probably
what is happening in reality, particularly if the junction has equipment to optimise the
green time depending on traffic (such as MOVA). As such we would consider this to
be something that can reasonably be managed and would not object to the proposal
on this basis. It is noted that Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council’s Highways
Department do not object to the application and have included conditions to mitigate
against possible highway concerns.

PARKING

The vehicle parking represents a shortfall of 368 car parking spaces based upon then
UDP, however in such circumstances of larger industrial developments it is
appropriate to use the Cheshire Standard. Based on this standard the Highway
Authority would not have any objections to the vehicle parking provision. In spite of
this it is necessary for 10% disabled parking provision to be provided as a standard
and in addition we would require 10 number Electric Vehicle charging points. It would
be acceptable to provide the first five initially and allow the supply to be installed to
cater for a further five within 5 years of completion.

The plans provided do not provide clear information in regard to cycle parking. Cycle
parking under the UDP is 10% provision of the required vehicle parking. This must be
secure, covered and located in a convenient and visible position for cycle safety to
encourage usage.

LAYOUT OF PROPOSED SITE

The proposed spur off the main Newstead Road highway into the site (plan number
14136 P0003) indicates a double width access road which can accommodate multiple
stacking of HGV’s. We would consider this access splay from Newstead Road
excessive in its design width to safely accommodate the cycle route and pedestrian
crossing. We would wish to see this splay amended and narrowed to create a safer
environment for all road users.

The pedestrian crossing point identified on the plan 14136 P0003, does not appear to
appropriately meet the needs of pedestrian users and is unclear as to its purpose.
The plan does not adequately indicate how pedestrians and cyclists safely enter the
site and access the building for the B2/B8 or B1 use. The crossing point identified
does not appear satisfactory for cyclists or pedestrians and creates a conflict at the
entrance point for larger vehicles. The Highway Authority would wish to see a clearer
plan which outlines how pedestrian and cycle users are expected to safely and
conveniently enter/ exit and move through the site to the cycle parking and unit
entrance points. Equally the HGV exit point appears to be overly wide for what would
be deemed necessary and it would be unlikely that two HGV’s would be required to
exit simultaneously. | would also question why there is a necessity for an exit splay to



Page 31

the east when all vehicles exiting here would travel in a westerly direction. This has
the effect of widening a crossing point for pedestrians and cyclists unnecessarily.

The plan indicates that the 3m cycleway/footway serving the site is proposed to be
reduced in width to 2m around the site boundary. Whilst | understand the plan is
merely indicative, we would expect the width to remain at 3m and would condition this.

Having spoken to the developer on all matters the Highway Authority have agreed to
the following-

SUMMARY & CONDITIONS

e 10% disabled parking provision- To be a condition of the application

e EV Charging space provision initially 5 installed and a further 5 within 5 years
operational. — To be a condition of the application.

e Boundary treatment details to be approved by Highway Authority- This will be
assessed under reserved matters

e Tracking details for HGV demonstrating that a larger vehicle can enter and exit the
site in forward gear. — This will be assessed under reserved matters

e Details of the safe access routes into the site for pedestrian and cycle users.- This
will be assessed under reserved matters

e Cycle parking which is covered, secure and in a visible location. — To be a condition
of the application

e Redesign of the HGV access and exit splays onto Newstead Road. — This will be
assessed under reserved matters.

2. Contaminated Land Officer

The application is supported by the following document;

e Liberty Widnes LLC Plot 2 Liberty Park Widnes, Geo-environmental validation report,
ref BMT2518, BWB Consulting, July 2020

| have reviewed the application and considered the land contamination implications
for the development, and can make the following comments.

The supporting document summarises the work undertaken under a previous
permission to investigate and remediate the site. Contamination, a result of the former
site use as a timber treatment works (creosoting of railway sleeper timbers), was
identified and determined to require remediation. Significant earthworks were
undertaken to remove foundations and other in ground obstructions and create a level
development platform. A programme of in situ treatment was completed to reduce
the level of risk posed to controlled waters by the creosote contamination. These
works were agreed to by HBC and the Environment Agency and the verification
reporting accepted, the works having met the remedial objectives.



Page 32

The current development proposals are in line with the intended use as set in the
original risk assessment for the site and therefore the remediation already undertaken
and approved means the site is suitable for use. The only remaining item is to
undertake a piling risk assessment, as there is some residual contamination on site
and it will be necessary for the applicant to demonstrate that the proposed works will
not increase the risk to controlled waters, particularly the deeper aquifer in the
underlying sandstone.

| do not have any objection to the application, but recommend that if permission is
granted it should be conditioned to require a piling risk assessment to be submitted
prior to construction commencing.

3. Lead Local Flood Authority

After reviewing 20/00445/OUT planning application LLFA found the following:

- The site is located off Newstead Road, Widnes. The site is bound to the south by the
railway and open fields, to the east and west by industrial units and to the north by
Ditton Brook. It is 7.32ha and considered to be Greenfield site, currently open space.

- The proposed development is for a B2/B8 development including ancillary office
space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) with associated loading bays, utilising a total floor
space of circa 360,000ft?, HGV/car parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle
connections and associated infrastructure. The site would be classified as ‘Less
Vulnerable’ according to NPPF guidance.

- The applicant has provided the following documents to support the application in
relation to drainage and flood risk: OTH_2LPW-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-YE-
0001_FRA_S2 P02_Report_plus_Appendix 1 to 2.pdf, OTH_2LPW-BWB-ZZ-XX-
RP-CD-0001_SDS_S2-P02.pdf

- The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) indicates the majority of the site lies within fluvial
Flood Zone 1, with the northern boundary of the site marginally located within Flood
Zones 2 and 3 on the Environment Agency Flood Map for Planning, with this area of
flood risk associated with Ditton Brook, a tidally influenced watercourse. The FRA
states ‘a review of the modelled levels in comparison to the topographical survey
indicates that the majority of the site along with the industrial unit footprint are
elevated above the 1 in 100 year, the 1 in 100 year +30% climate change and 1 in
1000 year fluvial and 1 in 200 year tidal design events.

- With regards to flood risk to the site from other sources the FRA states:

o The St Helens Canal is located approximately 2.8km south east of the site and
consequently is considered to pose a low risk [of flooding to the site].

o The site is shown to fall within an area predicted to be at a low susceptibility
to groundwater flooding.

o The site is shown to fall outside the area of risk of reservoir failure.

o Surface water flood risk on the Environment Agency Long Term Flood Risk
Maps shows the site to predominantly site within an area of very low surface
water flood risk, with a small areas of low risk shown within the site. The FRA



Page 33

mentions as the surrounding area falls away from the site, so any overland
flows could be routed away from the site.

o The nearby sewer networks direct flows away from the site, there is no historic
record of flooding from these sewers.

The FRA indicates that due to the site levels being located above the modelled water
levels and modelled flood extents from Ditton Brook, the current layout would be
removed from the floodplain and therefore would not have an impact on the floodplain
and therefore compensationary storage would not be required.

Further to this the FRA details the following to mitigate flood risk on site:

o Finished floor levels will be set a minimum of 300mm above the 1 in 100 year
+ 30% climate change fluvial and 1 in 200 year tidal flood levels, and a
minimum of 150mm above surrounding ground levels to mitigate against
pluvial events.

o Ground levels should be profiles to divert pluvial runoff from the built
development and towards the nearest drainage point.

o No building or planting should take place within the 8m easement of the top of
bank of Ditton Brook.

o Safe access and Egress can be achieved via Newstead Road (located in Flood
Zone 1).

o The future site occupier's should register for the EA’s free flood warning
service to receive updates of potential flood risk from the Brook.

The proposed development would increase the area of impermeable surfaces and
therefore increase surface runoff, which could increase flood risk to areas outside the
development.

To mitigate the developments impact on the runoff regime the applicant proposes to
incorporate surface water attenuation and storage as part of the proposal. The
application has provided a Sustainable Drainage Strategy (SDS) to support the
application.

The SDS document states ‘based on the proposed use and lifetime of the
development of 50 years it is proposed to apply a 20% allowance to account for ...
climate change’. The LLFA would not accept this statement and would require any
drainage strategy or this site to be designed to attenuate up to and including the 100
year design event +40% increase in peak flows to allow for climate change.

The SDS document indicates the existing conditions are as such:

o Located to the east of the site is a culvert that discharges into Ditton Brook via
a flap valve.

o The underlying geology of the site is identified as superficial deposits of clay,
silt and sand.

o Currently it's considered a proportion of any surface water on the site
infiltrates, with the remaining flowing to the watercourse at the boundary of the
site.

o An assessment of current runoff rates, using the IH124 method, indicate a
runoff rate per hectare of 5.1l/s.

o The current runoff volume calculated within Mirco Drainage is 1764m3.



Page 34

The SUS document indicated the following with regard to a drainage strategy for the
proposed development:

o Due to unfavourable underlying conditions and groundwater levels, disposal
of surface water via infiltration in deemed not feasible.

o Therefore the site is proposed to discharge to Ditton Brook, through the culvert
to the east of the site through the infrastructure designed and constructed as
part of previous work for the wider development area.

o The two existing surface water ‘stubs’ within the site are proposed to be
utilised, with the total runoff from the site along with associate attenuation
apportioned to each stub.

o As the development would be required to restrict the runoff rate to Greenfield
(or current QBAR), attenuate storage will be required.

o Attenuation is likely to be in the form of below ground storage, with filter strips
utilised within the parking areas to convey flows to the attenuation. Oil
separators are proposed to be used to manage potential hydrocarbons.

o The current drainage strategy is designed to attenuate the 100 year +20%
climate change design flows and a volume of 3690m3. The LLFA would require
for this to be designed to the 100 year +40% climate change peak flows and
associated volumes. Based upon the current drainage layout plans provided
the LLFA would expect the increase in attenuation required to fit within the
parking areas.

The SDS document indicates consideration of the potential impacts of tidal locking
on the flap valve have previously been considered as part of the wider scheme. The
LLFA would require details of how this was considered and measures taken as part
of this proposal to reduce the potential impacts of tidal locking at the proposed site
with a similar factor of safety allowance for tidal locking as for unit 1 to be submitted
as part of a detailed drainage strategy.

In summary, the LLFA is satisfied that the proposed development would likely be at
low risk of flooding from fluvial, tidal and groundwater sources. With regards to
surface water flood risk and drainage the LLFA would not accept the current drainage
strategy proposed as it is designed to attenuate up to the 100 year +20% climate
change allowance, rather than the 100 year + 40% climate change allowance, which
is the standard HBC would expect drainage strategies to be designed to. The LLFA
has also found the SDS document to lack details of how the potential impacts of tidal
locking on the flap valve (which the site discharges to) was considered and measures
taken as part of this proposal to reduce the potential impacts of tidal locking at the
proposed site with a similar factor of safety allowance for tidal locking as for unit 1.
Taking in to account the above mentioned issues, the LLFA would expect, based
upon the current drainage layout plans provided, the increase in attenuation required
to include the increase in climate change allowance and any storage for tidal locking
to be able to fit within the parking areas. Therefore the LLFA would require the
following conditions to be applied, should the LPA be minded to approve the
application:



Page 35

No development shall take place until a details of the implementation, maintenance
and management of a SUDS scheme for the disposal of surface water in accordance
with the SUDS hierarchy have been submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained
in accordance with the approved details. Those details shall include:

I infiltration testing, soakaway design and/or attenuation and filtration structures
and calculations to demonstrate a reduction in surface water runoff rate to
greenfield rates for new roof/hardstanding areas.

ii. Details to demonstrate the system is robust to tide-locked conditions combined
with discharges from upstream catchments to the receiving surface water
culvert.

iii. Details to show the system will attenuate flows up to and including the 100
year +40% climate change allowance.

iv. A detailed management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the
development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by, or
connection to any system adopted by, any public body or statutory undertaker,
or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage
scheme throughout its lifetime.

No development shall be occupied until a verification report confirming that the SUDS

system has been constructed in accordance with the approved design drawings and

in accordance with best practice has been submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority. This shall include:

i Evidence that the SuDS have been signed off by an appropriate, qualified,
indemnified engineer and are explained to prospective owners & maintainers
plus information that SuDS are entered into the land deeds of the property.

ii. An agreement that maintenance is in place over the lifetime of the
development in accordance with submitted maintenance plan; and/or
evidence that the SuDS will be adopted by third party.

ii. Submission of ‘As-built drawings and specification sheets for materials used
in the construction, plus a copy of Final Completion Certificate.

4. Environmental Protection

This site is located within an established commercial area of the borough, and the
site has held previous outline planning permission under 15/00428/OUT under which
the site transport infrastructure was constructed. The site also neighbours a recent
B2/B8 development, granted permission under 18/00215/FUL.

The closest noise sensitive area is Lovell Terrace, some 135m south of the
development site.



Page 36

We would not typically expect a development of this nature to cause a loss of amenity
in respect of noise once operational, though issues surrounding vehicle movement
can sometimes occur if tonal manoeuvring alarms are used on vehicles as opposed
to broadband / white sound alarms.

We would request that the applicant submits a lighting scheme to ensure that this is
appropriate and does not lead to a loss of amenity, and would also wish to ensure
that all development occurs at appropriate times on a development of this size.

Conclusion

Environmental Health has no objection to the application, subject to the following
conditions being applied, in the interests of residential amenity;

o There shall be no construction work audible at the site boundary, or deliveries
within the application site outside of the following hours;
= 07:30 — 19:00 Monday to Friday
= 07:30 — 13:00 Saturday
= There shall be no construction work or deliveries within the application
site on Sundays or Bank Holidays

o Prior to the installation of any external lighting, full details of the lighting
scheme shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority

o During the site operations, all vehicles on site shall utilise with broadband /
white sound manoeuvring alarms.

5. Regeneration — Regeneration supports this application as it is an integral part of SMG
and employment for the borough.

6. Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — Ecology and Waste Advisor.

FIRST CONSULTATION RESPONSE DATED 15™ SEPTEMBER 2020.

Habitats Regulations Assessment
The development site is adjacent to the following European sites. These sites are
protected under the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended) and Core Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 applies:

o Mersey Estuary SPA; and

o Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

In line with Sweetman (2018), | have undertaken the assessment of likely significant
effects, using the Source-Pathway-Receptor model, which is based upon the essential
features and characteristics of the project only (Appendix 1). This concludes that,



Page 37

without mitigation/preventative measures, that there will be likely significant effects on
the following European sites

o Mersey Estuary SPA; and

o Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

Appropriate Assessment is therefore required in accordance with Regulation 63
(Habitats Regulations 2017). | have completed the Appropriate Assessment report
(Appendix 2, table 2) which concludes that, with mitigation/preventative measures
secured through the appropriate planning mechanisms, there will be no adverse effect
upon the integrity of European sites.

| advise that Natural England is consulted on the outcome of the Appropriate
Assessment prior to determination and any points which may arise should be
addressed. Natural England’s views, together with the outcome of the Appropriate
Assessment, are required to be included within the Planning Committee/Delegated
report.

To ensure that the conclusions of the Appropriate Assessment remain valid, | advise
that provision of the following is secured by a suitably worded planning condition:

o A full and detailed Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)
which includes, but is not limited to, details of how the transfer of
construction-related pollutants into the adjacent Ditton Brook will be
avoided.

If there are any material amendments to the proposals, | advise that they must be re-
screened for likely significant effects. This includes amendments prior to determination
and subsequent approval/discharge of conditions.

Ecology
The applicant has submitted an Ecological Assessment report in accordance with Core

Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 (TEP, August 2020, 6985.02.001, version 2.0) which
meets BS 42020:2013.

Priority Habitat

As stated within the submitted Ecological Assessment report, the proposals affect a
Priority Habitat (namely Open Mosaic Habitats on Previously Development Land) and
Core Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 applies. The principles of appropriate
compensation for the loss of Priority Habitat is required to be agreed with the Council
prior to determination.

Designated sites
The proposals are close to the following designated sites and Core Strategy Local Plan
policy CS20 applies:

Mersey Estuary SSSI;

Hale Road Woodland LNR and LWS;
Clincton Wood LNR and LWS;
Pickering Pastures LNR;

Flood Plain, Ditton Brook;



Page 38

. Ditton Brook LWS; and
o Ash Lane hedge and ditch and grassland LWS.

However, | advise that the production and implementation of the CEMP will ensure that
harm to these designated sites is avoided.

Breeding birds

Vegetation on site may provide nesting opportunities for breeding birds, which are
protected and Core Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 applies. The following planning
condition is required (alternatively this could be included within the CEMP).

CONDITION

No tree felling, scrub clearance, vegetation management, ground clearance and/or
building works is to take place during the period 1 March to 31 August inclusive. If it is
necessary to undertake works during the bird breeding season then all buildings, trees,
scrub, hedgerows and vegetation are to be checked first by an appropriately
experienced ecologist to ensure no breeding birds are present. If present, details of
how they will be protected are required to be submitted for approval.

The proposed development will result in the loss of bird breeding habitat and Core
Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 applies. To mitigate for this loss, details of bird nesting
boxes (e.g. number, type and location on an appropriately scaled plan) that will be
erected on the site should be provided to the Local Planning Authority for agreement.
The following planning condition is required.

CONDITION

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of bird boxes to
include number, type and location on an appropriately scaled plan as well as timing of
installation, has been provided for approval and implemented in accordance with those
details.

Terrestrial mammals

The habitats on site are suitable for badger and hedgehog and Core Strategy Local
Plan policy CS20 applies. Badger are protected, whilst hedgehog is a Priority Species.
The following reasonable avoidance measures should be put in place to ensure that
there are no adverse effects on them:

o A pre-commencement check for badger and hedgehog;
o All trenches and excavations should have a means of escape (e.g. a ramp);
o Any exposed open pipe systems should be capped to prevent mammals
gaining access; and
o Appropriate storage of materials to ensure that mammals do not use them.
These measures can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition or they can
be included within the CEMP.

Riparian mammals

As recommended by the applicant’s ecological consultant, | advise that a pre-
commencement inspection of the adjacent stretch of Ditton Brook is undertaken as a
precaution. This can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition or be included
within the CEMP.




Page 39

Reptiles and Amphibians

Regarding reptiles and amphibians, | advise that the undertaking of the following
Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMs) during the construction phase as a
precaution are secured by a suitably worded planning condition (or they can be
included as part of the CEMP):

o Existing vegetation on the site will be gradually cut and removed under
ecological supervision to encourage any amphibians / reptiles present to
move away from the affected areas;

o The working area, together with any storage areas, will be kept clear of
debris, and any stored materials will be kept off the ground on pallets so as
to prevent amphibians / reptiles from seeking shelter or protection within
them; and

o Any open excavations (e.g. foundations / footings / service trenches etc) will
be covered with plywood sheeting (or similar) at the end of each working
day. The edges of these sheets will be covered with a thick layer of topsail
or similar) to prevent amphibians / reptiles from seeking shelter beneath
them. Any excavation must be in-filled and made good to ground level with
compacted stone or similar at the earliest opportunity, so as to remove any
hazard to amphibians / reptiles.

Invasive species

Indian balsam is present within the site boundary. Indian balsam is listed on Schedule
9 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act and national Planning Policy Guidance applies’.
The applicant should submit a method statement, prepared by a competent person,
which includes the following information:

o A plan showing the extent of the plant;

o The method that will be used to prevent the plant/s spreading further,
including demarcation;

o The method of control that will be used, including details of post-control
monitoring; and

o How the plants will be disposed of after treatment/removal.

The method statement should be submitted for approval to the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of any works on site. The method statement can be
secured by a suitably worded planning condition.

Habitats adjacent to the site may provide foraging and commuting habitat for bats.
Lighting for the development may affect the use of these areas. A lighting scheme can
be designed so that it protects ecology and does not result in excessive light spill onto
the adjacent habitats in line with NPPF (paragraph 180). This can be secured by a
suitably worded planning condition. It would be helpful for the applicant to refer to Bat
Conservation Trust website https://www.bats.org.uk/news/2018/09/new-guidance-on-
bats-and-lighting

Waste

1 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prevent-the-spread-of-harmful-invasive-and-non-native-plants



https://www.bats.org.uk/news/2018/09/new-guidance-on-bats-and-lighting
https://www.bats.org.uk/news/2018/09/new-guidance-on-bats-and-lighting
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/prevent-the-spread-of-harmful-invasive-and-non-native-plants

Page 40

The proposal is major development and involves excavation and construction activities
which are likely to generate significant volumes of waste. Policy WM8 of the
Merseyside and Halton Waste Joint Local Plan (WLP), the National Planning Policy for
Waste (paragraph 8) and Planning Practice Guidance (paragraph 49) apply. These
policies require the minimisation of waste production and implementation of measures
to achieve efficient use of resources, including designing out waste and minimisation
of off-site disposal.

In accordance with policy WM8, evidence through a waste audit or a similar
mechanism (e.g. a site waste management plan) demonstrating how this will be
achieved must be submitted and can be secured by a suitably worded planning
condition.

Sustainable Development and Climate Change

The Design and Access Statement (UMC Architects RevB 13.08.2020-MYDEB
Newstead Road Widnes) includes a section on sustainability. This indicates that the
building will aim to achieve BREEAM Very Good rating, through the use of energy
efficient, water efficient and sustainable waste management.

The energy and water efficiency measures identified meet the requirements of bullet
points 3 to 5 of Core Strategy Local Plan policy CS19 (Sustainable Development and
Climate Change), however, it is noted that the development aims to meet BREEAM
rating very good, whereas bullet point 2 of the policy requires BREEAM rating
excellent. | will be guided by planning colleagues on this matter.

Having reviewed the planning application and supporting documents and considered
the project against the provisions of the EIA Regulations (including screening criteria
presented in Schedule 3) and the relevant National Planning Practice Guidance, |
accordingly consider that the proposals are unlikely to give rise to significant
environmental effects from an EIA perspective, and that EIA is therefore not required
in this case.

EIA Screening

This application is replacing 15/00428/OUT which is lapsed. The 2015 application was
subject to EIA screening and not considered to be EIA development. The scale of
development is marginally smaller this time, and therefore, it is unlikely that EIA will be
required.

The development is an industrial estate development scheme under Schedule 2, 10(a)
of the EIA Regulations 2017. Such projects require screening if they are above 0.5ha
in extent. This scheme, at approximately 7.32ha, exceeds the stated threshold and
therefore screening for EIA is required. The precise end use of the development is
unclear but will include B2/BI use class.

Screening for Schedule 2 projects is undertaken on a case-by-case basis guided by a
range of indicative criteria and thresholds in order to reach a determination of whether
a project will, by virtue of its nature, size or location, give rise to likely significant
environmental effects and thereby be subject to a requirement for EIA.



Page 41

Government on-line planning guidance assists the screening process for this case by
clearly stating that EIA is unlikely to be required if the site area of new development is
less than 20ha in size. Key issues to consider are traffic, emissions and noise. In this
case the new development is less than 20ha in size, and is unlikely to result in
significant emissions or noise. There will be an increase in traffic, but the site is well
placed for access to main highways and transport modelling is taking place.

Regarding Schedule 3, the proposals are unlikely to have an adverse effect on the
integrity of European sites as determined by the HRA. Other statutory designated and
locally designated sites are also unlikely to be significantly impacted by the proposed
development. As noted above, the proposals will affect Priority Habitat and this will
require mitigation. However, it is not considered on this occasion that impacts on the
Priority Habitat are sufficient enough alone to trigger the requirement for EIA.

In addition, the site is not ‘environmentally sensitive’ according to any of the other
criteria set out in Schedule 3 of the EIA Regulations.

The development therefore fulfils none of the criteria which might lead to a
positive screening for EIA. | accordingly consider that the proposals are unlikely
to give rise to significant environmental effects and that EIA is therefore not
required in this case.

SECOND CONSULTATION RESPONSE DATED 23RP NOVEMBER 2020.

Habitats Regulations Assessment
The development site is adjacent to the following European sites. These sites are
protected under the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended) and Core Strategy Local Plan policy CS20 applies:

o Mersey Estuary SPA; and

o Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

In line with Sweetman (2018), | have undertaken the assessment of likely significant
effects, using the Source-Pathway-Receptor model, which is based upon the essential
features and characteristics of the project only (Appendix 1). This concludes that,
without mitigation/preventative measures, that there will be likely significant effects on
the following European sites

o Mersey Estuary SPA; and

o Mersey Estuary Ramsar.

Appropriate Assessment is therefore required in accordance with Regulation 63
(Habitats Regulations 2017). Following Natural England advice of 14 October 2020, |
have completed a revised Appropriate Assessment report (Appendix 2, table 2) which
concludes that, with mitigation/preventative measures secured through the appropriate
planning mechanisms, there will be no adverse effect upon the integrity of European
sites.



Page 42

| advise that Natural England is consulted on the outcome of the revised Appropriate
Assessment prior to determination and any points which may arise should be
addressed. Natural England’s views, together with the outcome of the Appropriate
Assessment, are required to be included within the Planning Committee/Delegated
report.

To ensure that the conclusions of the Appropriate Assessment remain valid, | advise
that provision of the following is secured by a suitably worded planning condition:

o A full and detailed Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)
which includes, but is not limited to, the following details of how the transfer
of construction-related pollutants into the adjacent Ditton Brook will be
avoided:

o Covering and containment of any areas of exposed topsoil or similar
materials and watering down of these when not in use;

o Restrictions on the movement of larger vehicles around site in order to
reduce soil compaction and reduce potential for increased surface
water runoff rates on the surface;

o Keeping of wheel washing and other wash down facilities in a
designated bunded impermeable area, away from Ditton Brook, with
surplus surface water disposed via the foul water system or adequately
treated prior to appropriate discharge;

o Undertaking of on-site refuelling activities in a bunded areas over
impermeable surfaces to prevent runoff and infiltration into Ditton
Brook; and

o The placement of straw bales on the site boundary adjacent to the
watercourse in order to collect any sediment within runoff that would
potentially enter the watercourse. Bales will also be placed within the
watercourse as an extra measure to collect any sediment in the event
that there is any runoff from the development site. Replacement of
bales as and when they started to become clogged and in turn less
effective.

If there are any material amendments to the proposals, | advise that they must be re-
screened for likely significant effects. This includes amendments prior to determination
and subsequent approval/discharge of conditions.

Appendix 1: Source-Pathway-Receptor & Assessment of Likely Significant
Effects
Application: 20/00445/0OUT Land To The South Of Newstead Road Bound By The

London And Western Railway And Ditton Brook

The source-pathway-receptor model assesses individual elements of a proposal that
may result in significant effects on European sites. If there is a source-pathway-
receptor link, then this effect is assessed for significance within the HRA. All potential
effects, regardless of scale, duration or permanence are identified and assessed for
significance. Figure 1 below shows how the model works.

A 2018 ECJ judgement, known as People Over Wind or Sweetman v Coillte Teoranta
ruled that avoidance and mitigation measures included within the proposals solely to



Page 43

avoid or reduce harmful effects on a European site cannot be considered at the
Assessment of Likely Significant Effects (ALSE) stage. These measures should
instead be assessed within the framework of an Appropriate Assessment. This
requires a distinction during the ALSE between essential features and characteristics
of a project (e.g. its nature, scale, design, location, frequency, timing and duration)
and avoidance and mitigation measures designed solely to avoid or reduce adverse
effects on a European site.

Source Pathway Receptor

Noi d dust Qualifying birds
e.g demolition %fneisas?onSL_JS within the Mersey
works . . Estuary, effects on
Noise disturbance prey species

Figure 1 — Source-Pathway-Receptor Model



Page 44

Source Pathway Receptor Likely Significant
Effects?

Site The proposed Qualifying No likely
construction: development will | features of significant effects
habitat loss occur European sites

approximately

1.2km to the ',‘_:”:tzsae,?}’, SPA

north of the

European sites. | Mersey

The proposed Estuary

development will | Ramsar

therefore result

in no loss of

designated

habitats or of

functionally-

linked habitats.

No pathway
Site Due to the Qualifying No Likely
construction: distance features of significant effects
noise and visual | separating the European sites
disturbance g;ovp:lassgq o Mersey

from the Estuary SPA

European sites, | Mersey

adverse noise Estuary

and visual Ramsar

disturbance

effects during

construction can

be discounted.

No pathway
Site Transfer of Qualifying Ditton Brook lies
construction: construction- features of adjacent to the
transfer of related European sites | northern site

construction

pollutants into

Mersey

boundary. There is

related European sites therefore a risk
pollutants via Ditton Brook. Estuary SPA that construction
Pathway Mersey works may result
Estuary in the transfer of
Ramsar construction-
related pollutants
into European
sites via the brook.
Likely significant
effects
Operational Due to the Qualifying No Likely
phase: noise distance features of significant effects




Page 45

and visual

separating the

European sites

disturbance grec\)/p;?(;ss:qent Mersey
from the Estuary SPA
European sites, | Mersey
adverse noise Estuary
and visual Ramsar
disturbance
effects during
the operational
phase of the
proposed
development
can be
discounted. No
pathway
Operational The submitted Qualifying No Likely
phase: habitat Flood Risk features of significant effects
degradation due | Assessment European sites
to transfer of (BWB, 4 August
pollutants 2020, 2LPW- AE”;ZS:,{, SPA
BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-
YE-0001_FRA) Mersey
states that Estuary
surface water on | Ramsar

the site will be
disposed of via
the foul water to
ensure that flood
risk in the wider
area is not
increased.
Therefore, no
outlet for surface
water will be
created into the
banks of Ditton
Brook and any
risk of
contaminated
surface waters
entering
European sites
via the
watercourse
during the
operational
phase of the
development
has been




Page 46

removed.
site will be
the drainage

the

to the
appropriate

pathway

Levels within the
profiled towards
features within
development.

Each of which is
to be designed

standards and
guidance. No

Conclusion of Test of Likely Significant Effects

Without the implementation of avoidance and mitigation measures, the proposals are
likely to have significant effects on European sites.

Appropriate Assessment is required in accordance with Regulation 63 (Habitats
Regulations 2017) and this is included within Appendix 2.

Appropriate Assessment

Application 20/00445/0OUT Land To The South Of Newstead Road Bound By The
London And Western Railway And Ditton Brook

Appropriate Assessment determines if the proposals will have an adverse effect on
the integrity of European sites. A clear distinction has been made between
embedded mitigation measures, which are essential features and characteristics of
the proposals and additional avoidance and mitigation measures that are solely
designed to avoid significant effects on European sites.

Table 2. Appropriate Assessment

Qualifying
features of:

Mersey Estuary
SPA

Mersey Estuary
Ramsar

Transfer of dust
and
construction-
related pollutants
to the European
sites

Construction
Environment
Management Plan
(CEMP) which
includes, but is not
limited to, the following
pollution prevention
measures:

e Covering and
containment of

Provided that the
production and
implementation of a
Construction
Environment
Management Plan
(CEMP) is secured
by a suitably worded

planning condition

there will be no
adverse effect on




Page 47

any areas of
exposed topsoil or
similar materials
and watering
down of these
when not in use;
Restrictions on the
movement of
larger vehicles
around site in
order to reduce
soil compaction
and reduce
potential for
increased surface
water runoff rates
on the surface;
Keeping of wheel
washing and other
wash down
facilities in a
designated
bunded
impermeable
area, away from
Ditton Brook, with
surplus surface
water disposed via
the foul water
system or
adequately
treated prior to
appropriate
discharge;
Undertaking of on-
site refuelling
activities in a
bunded areas
over impermeable
surfaces to
prevent runoff and
infiltration into
Ditton Brook; and
The placement of
straw bales on the
site boundary
adjacent to the
watercourse in
order to collect
any sediment

the integrity of the
European sites.




Page 48

within runoff that
would potentially
enter the
watercourse.
Bales will also be
placed within the
watercourse as an
extra measure to
collect any
sediment in the
event that there is
any runoff from
the development
site. Replacement
of bales as and
when they started
to become
clogged and in
turn less effective.

7. Health and Safety Executive

Land Use Planning Consultation with Health and Safety Executive [Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order
2015, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Wales) Order 2012, or Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure)(Scotland) Regulations 2013]

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) is a statutory consultee for certain
developments within the Consultation Distance of Major Hazard Sites/ pipelines.
This consultation, which is for such a development and is within at least one
Consultation Distance, has been considered using HSE's planning advice web
app, based on the details input on behalf of Halton (B).

HSE's Advice: Do Not Advise Against, consequently, HSE does not advise,
on safety grounds, against the granting of planning permission in this
case.

8. Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council

Under normal circumstances KMBC Highways would not accept the 2015 traffic
count for the A5300 Knowsley Expressway/A562 Speke Road part signalised
grade separated roundabout junction due to it being too out of date, particularly
in light of the highway changes to the road markings that were undertaken since
then, and would have requested a revised count be carried out. However, it is
acknowledged that during current covid lockdown restrictions it would be
inappropriate to do this due to reduced traffic levels on the network and



Page 49

therefore the use of the 2015 count data factored up to the development
opening year is accepted on this occasion.

It is noted that the total floorspace for both phase 1 and phase 2 of the
development is slightly less than the previous 2015 outline consent that has
subsequently lapsed, and that phase 1 has been treated as a committed
development in the Transport Assessment (TA) as it has been built but is
currently unoccupied. The trip rates assuming 100% B2 use for phase 1 are
accepted.

As the proposed split between B2 and B8 use is unknown for phase 2, scenario
1 in the TA is accepted as the worst case scenario for 100% B2 use. Scenario
2 for a 50:50 split is not agreed as this examines a lower level of traffic
generation than could occur and would not be agreed unless a planning
condition was imposed to limit the proposed floor space to 50% B2 use. These
highway comments are therefore based solely on scenario 1 which is deemed
appropriate.

For scenario 1 in the development opening year of 2022, the A5300/A562
junction links are up to 97% capacity in the AM peak hour with the development
in place compared to 94% without development, except for the A562 westbound
off-slip that is well over capacity at 121% with and without the development. In
the PM peak, the junction links are up to 91% capacity with and without the
development. In the AM peak the vehicle queues would increase from 69 to 75
on the A562 westbound off-slip with the development, and with an increase
from 9 to 14 vehicles in the PM peak on the eastern circulatory carriageway
with the development. There would be no bigger increases in queuing greater
than 6 vehicles on any link when comparing the 2022 scenario with and without
development.

For scenario 1 in the future year of 2027, the A5300/A562 junction links are up
to 99% capacity in the AM peak hour with the development in place compared
to 96% without development, except for the A562 westbound off-slip that is well
over capacity at 125% with and without the development. In the PM peak, the
junction links are up to 93% capacity with and without the development. In the
AM peak the vehicle queues would increase from 80 to 86 on the A562
westbound off-slip with the development, and with an increase from 10 to 15
vehicles in the PM peak on the eastern circulatory carriageway with the
development. There would be no bigger increases in queuing greater than 6
vehicles on any link when comparing the 2027 scenario with and without
development.

Although some of the A5300/A562 junction links are approaching capacity in
both 2022 and 2027, and the A562 westbound off-slip is over capacity, the



Page 50

introduction of the development would not have a significant increase on the
operation of the junction as the highest increase is 3%. The degree of saturation
of the A562 westbound off-slip would be the same with and without the
development. In addition there would only be a minor increase in vehicle
queuing of up to 6 vehicles on all links. The junction does include MOVA that
was in place prior to 2015 when the traffic count was undertaken and it is
acknowledged that this would result in slightly better results on the highway
network than the traffic model can predict.

On this basis Knowsley Highways has no objection to the planning application
but requests that if approved the planning decision notice includes a planning
condition, or removal of permitted development rights, to prevent the increase
of any building floor space on the site (including mezzanine floor areas) over
and above that stated in the current application. Knowsley Highways asks that
any such future proposed increase in floor space is the subject of a new
planning application and updated TA, with a revised traffic count of the
A5300/A562 junction and updated junction modelling, to enable the
examination of the additional trip generation and traffic impact of such
proposals.

9. Environment Agency

Environment Agency Position
Flood Risk

We have reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) from BWB (Ref 2LPW-BWB-
ZZ-XX-RP-YE-0001_FRA Rev P02 dated 04/08/2020) submitted with the
application and we are satisfied that it demonstrates that the proposed development
will not be at an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood risk elsewhere.
The proposed development must proceed in strict accordance with the FRA and
the mitigation measures identified as it will form part of any subsequent planning
approval. Therefore, we consider that planning permission for the proposed
development should only be granted if the following mitigation measures as set out
below are implemented and secured by way of planning conditions on any planning
permission.

Condition

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) from BWB (Ref 2LPW-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-YE-0001_FRA Rev P02
dated 04/08/2020) and the following mitigation measures it details:

1. Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 7.1 metres Above Ordnance
Datum (AOD) or 150 mm above external ground levels whichever is greater.

2. The preparation of an emergency evacuation plan, including the registration
with Floodline on 0345 988 1188 to receive Flood Warnings.

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The



Page 51

measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout
the lifetime of the development.

Reason
To reduce the impact of flooding on the proposed development and future
occupants and to ensure safe access and egress from and to the site.

Contaminated Land

We have also reviewed the following reports with respect to potential risks to
controlled waters from land contamination in relation to the proposed development
of Plot 2 (Liberty Park) located at Newstead Road, Widnes.

e Geo-environmental Validation report. Plot 2. Liberty Park. Widnes. Prepared
by BWB. Report Ref: BMT 2518. Revision 1. Date: July 2020.

o Sustainable Drainage Statement. Plot 2 Liberty Park. Widnes. Prepared by
BWB. Report Ref: BMT 2518 SDS. Revision P02. Date: 5" August 2020.

The site has previously been subject to remediation/validation works as
documented within the Geo-Environmental Validation report dated July 2020.

Whilst we are satisfied that no further works are required at this current time in
respect of controlled waters as documented within our correspondence dated 16t
March 2017 (Ref: S0/2016/116073/13-L03, as attached) we ask that the following
planning conditions are included within any planning permission granted for the
site to ensure controlled waters are adequately protected during the development
of the site.

The site is located within a sensitive environmental setting with respect to
controlled waters. Further information is required to demonstrate the proposed
development will be protective of relevant controlled water receptors.

Condition

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing
with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has
submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from
the local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as
approved.

Reason

To ensure that the development is not put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely
affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with paragraph 170 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Given the applicant is proposing a piled foundation solution into the bedrock and
the potential for residual contamination to be present within the groundwater we
ask that the applicant prepares an appropriate piling risk assessment (taking into
account the potential artesian nature of the deeper groundwater within the
sandstone aquifer) in line with best practice and guidance such as the Environment



Page 52

Agency document NC/99/73 'Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods
on Land Affected by Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention’ to ensure
the proposed piling method is protective of controlled waters.

Condition

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be
permitted other than with the express written consent of the local planning
authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been
demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason
To ensure that the proposed piling activity is protective of controlled waters in line
with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Given the potential for residual contamination to be present within the groundwater
any infiltration to ground of surface water from SUDS has the potential to mobilise
any existing residual groundwater contamination.

Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed
development site is located adjacent to Ditton Brook.

In light of the above, we do not believe that the use of infiltration SuDS is
appropriate in this location. We therefore request that the following planning
condition is included as part of any permission granted.

Condition

No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water to the ground are permitted
other than with the written consent of the local planning authority. Any proposals
for such systems must be supported by an assessment of the risks to controlled
waters. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason

To ensure that the development will not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be
adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with paragraph
170 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

We ask to be consulted on the details submitted for approval to your Authority to
discharge this condition and on any subsequent amendments/alterations.

Advice to applicant

The site is adjacent to Ditton Brook, which is designated "main river". There is also
a raised flood defence wall along the southern bank of Ditton Brook, which affects
the north-east corner of the site.

Under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016, a
permit may be required from the Environment Agency for any proposed works or
structures, in, under, over or within eight metres of the top of the bank of



Page 53

Ditton Brook. This was formerly called a Flood Defence Consent. A permit may
also be required for any proposals within 8 metres of the landward toe of the raised
flood defence wall. Some activities are also now excluded or exempt. A permit is
separate to and in addition to any planning permission granted. Further details and
guidance are available on the GOV.UK website:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits.

The site lies within an area where the Environment Agency is able to issue
warnings of flooding. For more information about this service please see;
https://www.gov.uk/sign-up-for-flood-warnings

Informatives
Model Procedures and good practice

We recommend that developers should:

o Follow the risk management framework set out on our 'Land Contamination
Risk Management' guidance.

o Refer to the Environment Agency Guiding principles for land contamination for
the type of information that we required in order to assess risks to controlled
waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to other receptors,
such as human health.

o Consider using the National Quality Mark Scheme for Land Contamination
Management which involves the use of competent persons to ensure that land
contamination risks are appropriately managed.

o Refer to the contaminated land pages on GOV.UK for more information.

The redevelopment of the site may give rise to waste management issues and we
would advise the Applicant as follows:

Reuse of material on site

The CLAIRE Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice (version
2) provides operators with a framework for determining whether or not excavated
material arising from site during remediation and/or land development works are
waste or have ceased to be waste.

Under the Code of Practice:

e excavated materials that are recovered via a treatment operation can be re-
used on-site providing they are treated to a standard such that they fit for
purpose and unlikely to cause pollution

« treated materials can be transferred between sites as part of a hub and cluster
project

e some naturally occurring clean material can be transferred directly between
sites.

Developers should ensure that all contaminated materials are adequately
characterised both chemically and physically, and that the permitting status of any
proposed on site operations are clear. If in doubt, the Environment Agency should
be contacted for advice at an early stage to avoid any delays.


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits#check-if-what-you-are-doing-is-an-excluded-activity
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits#check-if-there-is-an-exemption-for-your-flood-risk-activity
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/sign-up-for-flood-warnings
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks/stage-1-risk-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-contamination-how-to-manage-the-risks/stage-1-risk-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/land-contamination-technical-guidance
http://www.claire.co.uk/projects-and-initiatives/nqms
http://www.claire.co.uk/projects-and-initiatives/nqms
https://www.gov.uk/contaminated-land

Page 54

The Environment Agency recommends that developers should refer to:

o the Position statement on the Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code
of Practice and,;

e The Environmental regulations page on GOV.UK.

Waste to be taken off site

Contaminated soil that is, or must be disposed of, is waste. Therefore, its handling,
transport, treatment and disposal is subject to waste management legislation,
which includes:

e Duty of Care Regulations 1991

e Hazardous Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2005

« Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2017

« The Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011

Developers should ensure that all contaminated materials are adequately
characterised both chemically and physically in line with relevant guidance and that
the permitting status of any proposed treatment or disposal activity is clear. If in
doubt, the Environment Agency should be contacted for advice at an early stage
to avoid any delays.

SuDS - infiltration

Approved Document Part H of the Building Regulations 2010 establishes a
hierarchy for surface water disposal, and encourages a SuDS approach. The first
option for surface water disposal should be the use of SuDS, which encourage
infiltration such as soakaways or infiltration trenches. In all cases, it should be
established that these options are feasible, can be adopted and properly
maintained and would not lead to any other environmental problems. For example,
using soakaways or other infiltration methods on contaminated land carries
groundwater pollution risks and may not work in areas with a high water table.
Where the intention is to dispose to soakaway, these should be shown to work
through an appropriate assessment carried out under Building Research
Establishment (BRE) Digest 365.

SuDS - further information

Further information on SuDS can be found in:

« the CIRIA C697 document SuDS manual

« HR Wallingford SR 666 Use of SuDS in high density developments

o CIRIA C635 Designing for exceedance in urban drainage — good practice the
Interim Code of Practice for Sustainable Drainage Systems — the Interim Code
of Practice provides advice on design, adoption and maintenance issues and a
full overview of other technical guidance on SuDS.

Requlatory position statements

If dewatering and discharging into surface water is required during development
the following Regulatory Position Statement would apply: ‘Temporary dewatering
from excavations to surface water’


https://www.gov.uk/browse/business/waste-environment/environmental-regulations

Page 55

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-dewatering-from-
excavations-to-surface-water

If during development discharge into groundwater is required an assessment needs
to be carried out to determine whether one of the groundwater exclusions
exempting permit application applies.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-
environmental-permits/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-

permits

10.Natural England

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to
ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the
benefit of present and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable
development.

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND’S ADVICE
NO OBJECTION - SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATE MITIGATION BEING SECURED
We consider that without appropriate mitigation the application would:

¢ have an adverse effect on the integrity of Mersey Estuary Special Protection Area
(SPA) , Mersey Estuary Ramsar and Mersey Estuary Site of Scientific Interest
(SSSI)

In order to mitigate these adverse effects and make the development acceptable,
the following mitigation measure should be secured:

e The production and implementation of a Construction Environment Management
Plan (CEMP)

We advise that an appropriate planning condition or obligation is attached to any
planning permission to secure these measures.
Natural England’s further advice on designated sites is set out below.

Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)

Natural England notes that an appropriate assessment of the proposal has been
undertaken in accordance with regulation 63 of the Conservation of Species and
Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended). Natural England is a statutory
consultee on the appropriate assessment stage of the Habitats Regulations
Assessment process.

The appropriate assessment concludes that your authority is able to ascertain
that the proposal will not result in adverse effects on the integrity of any of the
sites in question.

Having considered the updated HRA by MEAS received by us on the 16 October
2020, and the measures proposed to mitigate for all identified adverse effects
that could potentially occur as a result of the proposal, Natural England advises


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-dewatering-from-excavations-to-surface-water
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-dewatering-from-excavations-to-surface-water
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits/groundwater-activity-exclusions-from-environmental-permits

11.

Page 56

that we concur with the assessment conclusions providing that the below
mitigation measure is appropriately secured in any planning permission given.

We advise that a detailed Construction Environment Management Plan
(CEMP) is produced and agreed prior to commencement of any works on site.
The CEMP should provide specific details on mitigation measures to prevent
the pollution of the adjacent watercourse. The

measures as set out within the Appropriate Assessment should be incorporated
into the CEMP.

We would be pleased to provide advice on the discharge of planning conditions
or obligations attached to any planning permission to address the issues above.

Mersey Estuary SSSI

Our concerns regarding the potential impacts upon the Mersey Estuary SSSI
coincide with our concerns regarding the potential impacts upon the
international designated sites, therefore we are content that providing the
application is undertaken in strict accordance with the details submitted

and providing the above conditions are secured, the development is not likely to
damage the interest features for which the site has been notified.

Please note that if your authority is minded to grant planning permission contrary
to the advice in this letter, you are required under Section 281 (6) of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to notify Natural England of the
permission, the terms on which it is proposed to grant it and how, if at all, your
authority has taken account of Natural England’s advice. You must also allow a
further period of 21 days before the operation can commence.

Cadent Gas — Observations have been provided detailing the presence of
apparatus which the applicant needs to be mindful of. The detailed observations
should be provided to the applicant by way of an informative on any subsequent
approval.

12.Network Rail — No observations received at the time of writing this report.

13.Halebank Parish Council — No observations received at the time of writing this

report.



Page 57

APPLICATION NO:

20/00536/FUL

LOCATION: Land to the west of junction between
Hardwick Road and Astmoor Road,
Runcorn, Cheshire.

PROPOSAL.: Proposed employment development
comprising 13 units totalling 2545 sq
metres to provide E(g) ,B2 & B8 uses

WARD: Halton Castle

PARISH: None

APPLICANT: FI Real Estate Management

AGENT: Modern City Architecture and Urbanism,

Eastgate, 2 Castle Street, Manchester,
M3 4LZ.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN:
Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy (2013)

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local
Plan (2013)

ALLOCATIONS:

Primarily Employment Area — Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map.

DEPARTURE No.

REPRESENTATIONS: No representations received from the
publicity given to the application.

KEY ISSUES: Development in a Primarily Employment
Area, Highways and Transportation,
Flood Risk and Drainage.

RECOMMENDATION: Grant planning permission subject to

conditions

SITE MAP

Agenda Item 3b




1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1The Site

The site subject of the application is land to the west of junction between Hardwick
Road and Astmoor Road in Runcorn. The site is 0.8ha in area and is located on the
Astmoor Industrial Estate.

The site is designated as Primarily Employment Area on the Halton Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map.

The land is currently used for storage of light vehicles (vans/cars). The site is
elevated from Astmoor Road which is located to the north / west of the site. Located
to the south of the site is the Busway. Located to the east of the site is Hardwick
Road. The area is predominantly industrial in nature.

The Council submitted the Submission Delivery and Allocations Local Plan to the
Planning Inspectorate (DALP) for independent examination on 5th March 2020. This
will replace the existing Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map in due course.
This proposes to designate the site as an Employment Allocation (Site Reference



Page 59

E13). This is now a material planning consideration, however at this point carries
little weight in the determination of this planning application.

1.2Planning History

The site has some planning history with the more recent applications being as follows:

e (02/00540/FUL - Proposed erection of a control kiosk, new access, realignment
of existing landscaping bund and erection of bollards — Granted 13/09/2002.

e 19/00305/COU - Retrospective application for change of use of land for
storage of light vehicles (vans/cars) — Granted 03/04/2020.

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal

The application originally proposed employment development comprising 14 units
totalling 3013 sq metres to provide E, B2 & B8 uses.

During the processing of the application, the description of development has been
amended to proposed employment development comprising 13 units totalling 2545
sq metres to provide E(g), B2 & B8 uses. This was as a result of site constraints and
observations made by Officers.

2.2 Documentation

The application is accompanied by the associated plans (all viewable through the
Council’'s website) in addition to a Planning Statement, Design and Access
Statement, Flood Risk Assessment & SUDS Drainage Strategy, Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal, Phase Il Geotechnical Assessment, Transport Statement,
Travel Plan Statement, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Tree Constraints Report,
Noise Impact Assessment, Air Quality Screening.

3. POLICY CONTEXT

Members are reminded that planning law requires for development proposals to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

3.1 Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)

The site is designated as a Primarily Employment Area on the Halton Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map.

The following policies within the adopted Unitary Development Plan are considered
to be of particular relevance;

e BE1 General Requirements for Development;
e BEZ2 Quality of Design;
e E3 Primarily Employment Areas;



Page 60

E5 New Industrial and Commercial Development;

GE21 Species Protection;

GE27 Protection of Trees and Woodland;

PR1 Air Quality;

PR2 Noise Nuisance;

PR4 Light Pollution and Nuisance;

PR14 Contaminated Land;

PR16 Development and Flood Risk;

TP1 Public Transport Provision as Part of New Development;
TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development;

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development;
TP12 Car Parking;

TP14 Transport Assessment;

TP15 Accessibility to New Development;

TP16 Green Travel Plans;

TP17 Safe Travel For All.

3.2Halton Core Strategy (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Core Strategy are of particular relevance:

CS1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy;

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;
CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities;
CS7 Infrastructure Provision;

CS15 Sustainable Transport;

CS18 High Quality Design;

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change;
CS20 Natural and Historic Environment;

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk;

CS24 Waste.

3.3Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local
Plan are of relevance:

WM8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management;
WMS9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout of New Development.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Below are material considerations relevant to the determination of this planning
application.

3.4 Halton Borough Council — Design of New Commercial and Industrial Development

Supplementary Planning Document.

The purpose of this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is to complement the
Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP), to provide additional practical guidance and



Page 61

support for those involved in the planning of new development within Halton Borough
to: -

a. Design new industrial and commercial developments that relate well and make a
positive contribution to their local environment;

b. Seek the use of quality materials which respond to the character and identity of
their surroundings and reduce environmental impact such as through energy
efficiency; and

c. Create better, more sustainable places

3.5National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in February 2019 to
set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied.

Achieving Sustainable Development

Paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. At a very high level, the
objective of sustainable development can be summarised as meeting the needs of
the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

Paragraph 8 states that achieving sustainable development means that the planning
system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be
pursued in mutually supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure
net gains across each of the different objectives):

a) an economic objective — to help build a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity;
and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;

b) a social objective — to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the
needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe
built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and
future needs and support communities’ health, social and cultural well-being; and

c) an environmental objective — to contribute to protecting and enhancing our
natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping
to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and
pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving to a low
carbon economy.

Paragraph 9 states that these objectives should be delivered through the preparation
and implementation of plans and the application of the policies in this Framework;
they are not criteria against which every decision can or should be judged. Planning
policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding development towards
sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local circumstances into account,
to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.



Page 62

Paragraph 10 states so that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at
the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
As set out in paragraph 11 below:

The Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Paragraph 11 states that for decision-taking this means:

¢) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

Decision-making

Paragraph 38 states that local planning authorities should approach decisions on
proposed development in a positive and creative way. They should use the full range
of planning tools available, including brownfield registers and permission in principle,
and work proactively with applicants to secure developments that will improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every
level should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible.

Determining Applications

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires for planning permission to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Decisions on application should be made as quickly as possible
and within statutory timescale unless a longer period has been agreed by the
applicant in writing.

3.6 Other Considerations
The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First Protocol
of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a persons rights to the peaceful
enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act which sets out
his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for the home. Officers consider
that the proposed development would not be contrary to the provisions of the above
Articles in respect of the human rights of surrounding residents/occupiers.

4. CONSULTATIONS SUMMARY - FULL RESPONSES CAN BE LOCATED AT
APPENDIX 1.

Highways and Transportation Development Control — No objection.
Contaminated Land Officer — No objection.

Lead Local Flood Authority — No objection.

Environmental Protection — No objection.

Open Spaces — No comments to make.



Page 63

Regeneration — Concerns raised on original proposal and no further comments /
observations on the amended proposal.

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — Ecology and Waste Advisor — No
objection.

Environment Agency — No observations received.

Natural England — No objection.

United Utilities — No objection.

5. REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was advertised by a press advert in the Widnes and Runcorn Weekly
News on 22/10/2020, three site notices posted on 15/10/2020 and twenty one
neighbour notification letters sent on 15/10/2020.

5.2Following the receipt of amended plans, a further twenty one neighbour notification
letters were sent on 23/02/2021.

5.3 No representations have been received from the publicity given to the application.

6. ASSESSMENT

6.1 Principle of Development

Paragraph 47 of NPPF states that applications for planning permission be determined
in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. It is considered that the development plan policies referenced are in
general conformity with the NPPF and full weight should be given to these.

The site is designated as a Primarily Employment Area on the Halton Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map. The application proposes employment
development comprising 13 units totalling 2545 sq metres to provide E(g), B2 & B8
uses. This would replace the use of land for storage of light vehicles (vans/cars)
granted for a temporary period until 30/04/2025 until a more suitable long term
solution for the site was to come forward.

Policy E3 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan states that development falling
within Use Classes B1 (Business), B2 (Storage and Distribution), B8 (Storage and
Distribution) and Sui Generis industrial uses will be permitted in a Primarily
Employment Area. The principle of both Use Class B2 and Use Class B8 in this
location is therefore acceptable.

Use Class B1 (Business) referred to in the above referenced policy is now part of Use
Class E (Commercial, Business and Service) from 15t September 2020. Use Class
E includes a wide range of uses in retail, day nurseries and indoor sports. The
applicant has confirmed that they wish the application to be considered on the basis
of Use Class E (g) which encompasses uses previously within Use Class B1 and are
considered acceptable in an Employment Area.



Page 64

It is considered that any subsequent planning permission should be restricted to Use
Class E (g), Use Class B2 and Use Class B8 to ensure that the uses are sympathetic
to the surrounding area.

Based on the above, the principle of development is considered to be acceptable.

6.2 Highways and Transportation

Vehicular access to the site would be gained from Hardwick Road and the Highway
Officer has raised no objection to this. The trip generation does not flag up any issues
and the existing highway infrastructure around Astmoor Road and its junctions with
the expressways would not be adversely affected.

As the proposal seeks permission for Use Class B8, the Highway Officer considers
that the proposal should demonstrate that a HGV (a rigid body heavy goods vehicle
equivalent to Halton Borough Council’s refuse vehicle - Mercedes Econic 10m 3 axle
26 tonne refuse vehicle) can enter and exit safely in forward gear. This detail has now
been provided to the satisfaction of the Highway Officer and ensures that the proposal
would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety or the impact on the road
network would be severe.

In respect of parking provision, the development proposed 67 parking spaces of
which 8 would be accessible. Maximum parking standards set out in Appendix 1 of
the Halton Unitary Development Plan for the uses proposed would vary between 51
spaces and 73 spaces. The level of parking provision at 67 spaces is considered to
be acceptable.

In the interests of climate change and sustainability, the application proposes that 4
of the parking spaces would benefit from Electric Vehicle charging points which is
welcomed and the detail should be secured by condition.

The application site is located adjacent to the busway and the proposed improved
pedestrian access to the busway is welcomed.

The proposed cycle parking is acceptable in principle. Precise details of cycle parking
which is secure, covered would need to be secured by condition.

The Highway Officer considers that the Travel Plan Statement offers very little by way
of active encouragement of sustainable travel modes. Car share is mentioned
however there are no proposed incentives such as specific car parking location
mentioned. There is a plan to improve the walking routes into the site which is
supported by the Council coupled with a convenient access from the busway for staff.
Given that the site is to be divided into a number of units it is understandably difficult
to commit to any specific schemes to promote active travel however the appointment
of a travel plan coordinator to oversee a travel plan for the site with specific aims and
travel ambitions detailed is required. The implementation of the travel plan should be
secured by condition.

In conclusion, the proposal is acceptable from a highway perspective in compliance
with Policies BE1, TP1, TP6, TP7, TP12, TP14, TP15, TP16 and TP17 of the Halton
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.



Page 65

6.3 Site Layout and External Appearance

The site is laid out in manner where the built form is predominantly located along the
southern boundary of the site adjacent to the busway with the active frontage
including parking and servicing areas facing northwards towards Astmoor Road.

Regeneration colleagues have commented that this location is front facing to Astmoor
Road, and must align with the Astmoor Regeneration Masterplan 3.1 Design
Principles which state:

Buildings should define the public facing edges of a site, rather than yard space or
parking. Building frontages should enclose private yard space away from public view
and present a ‘public face’ to adjacent roads. Facilities for the storage of waste should
not be visible from the public realm.

This point has been raised with the applicant who acknowledges the design principle
stated in the regeneration masterplan. In terms of building position, the applicant has
advised that they are restricted as to where buildings can be located within the site
due to a large main drain that is running across the centre of the site with significant
easements that need to be achieved. They advise that the only developable space
available is the rear of the site which is where the buildings have been positioned.

The applicant considers that the development will likely be trade counter type
business use with the units having glazed frontages and appropriate signage. They
have advised that the parking to the front would be landscaped and good quality and
would create a welcoming active public face to the site.

Noting the design principles set out in the Astmoor Regeneration Masterplan, the site
constraints and the revised scheme now under consideration, the design of the
proposed development coupled with the improved landscaping scheme would result
in a scheme which would have an acceptable impact on the locality namely from
Astmoor Road which is the main vehicular route through this area.

Considering the proposed development in terms of its relationship to the busway, it
is noted that the rear elevation of the development would face the busway. Due to
the site dimension and associated constraints, the layout proposed is considered to
be logical and the boundary with the busway would continue to be softened with the
hedgerow located on this boundary. The retention of hedgerows should be secured
by condition.

The applicant has confirmed that all bin stores would be internal within the units so
would not be visible. In terms of maintaining the external appearance of the proposed
development, it is considered that a condition restricting external storage is
reasonable.

The units are designed in a manner which create interest through the use of different
cladding, glazing and contrasting colour roller shutter doors. This design approach
is considered to be acceptable and the precise detail of materials to be used can be
secured by condition.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development would be laid out in an
appropriate manner resulting in appropriate external appearance within its locality in



Page 66

accordance with Policies BE1, BE2 and E5 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan
and Policy CS18 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.4Flood Risk and Drainage

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment & SuDS Drainage
Strategy. These have been reviewed by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA).

The LLFA have raised no objections to the statements related to flood risk. The
applicant stated that infiltration is likely not to be feasible due to existing ground
conditions and it is proposed to therefore discharge surface water into an existing
public surface water sewer, which discharges into the Manchester Ship Canal north
of the site. The LLFA have no objection in principle to this proposal in respect of
surface water drainage.

The attachment of a condition securing the implementation, maintenance and
management of the sustainable drainage scheme would ensure that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of flood risk and drainage in compliance with Policy PR16 of the
Halton Unitary Development Plan, Policy CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

6.5Noise

The application is accompanied by a Noise Assessment.

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer notes that it was agreed that a full noise
report was not required to accompany this application, due to the distance to the
nearest noise sensitive property and the proposed use of the site. On this basis no
objection was raised.

The proposal is considered acceptable from a noise perspective in compliance with
Policies BE1 and PR2 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policy CS23 of
the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.6 Air Quality

The application is accompanied by an Air Quality Screening. This sets out that a full
Air Quality Assessment is not required in this instance and has been agreed by the
Environmental Health Officer.

No objection is raised in respect of air quality and the proposal is considered to be in
compliance with Policy PR1 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policy CS23
of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.7 Ground Contamination

The application is accompanied by a Phase Il Geotechnical Assessment.



Page 67

This has been reviewed by the Contaminated Land Officer and no objection has been
raised to the proposed development. No remedial or special measures are required
for the end use of the site.

The proposal is considered acceptable from a ground contamination perspective in
compliance with Policy PR14 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan and Policy
CS23 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.8 Ecology

The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal. This has been
reviewed by the Council’s Ecological Advisor.

The development site is close to the following designated sites:

e Mersey Estuary SPA,;
e Mersey Estuary Ramsar site; and
¢ Wigg Island Local Nature Reserve

The Council’s Ecological Advisor has stated that the development is unlikely to harm
the features for which the sites have been designated:

e The development site is located approximately 1.6km from the Mersey Estuary
European sites, and in an area of already significant industrial and human
disturbance. The development does not require assessment under the
Habitats Regulations (2017);

e The development site is 120m south of Wigg Island LNR but is separated by
Astmoor Road, raised earth embankment and tree line and Manchester Ship
Canal, all which act to reduce potential impacts during the construction period.
The proposal will have excavation and construction impacts which are
consigned largely within the existing curtilage, with the roadside location
meaning fencing and pollution prevention measures will be required and will
ensure the retention of dust and construction-related pollution on site; and

e The development site has a history of vehicle storage, with the local area an
established industrial zone. The operation of an additional development will
not have significant impacts on Wigg island LNR.

Natural England have been consulted on the application and raise no objection as
they also consider that the proposed development will not have significant adverse
impacts on designated sites. The attachment of the drainage condition referred to in
6.4 would ensure that the scheme is implemented to the satisfaction of Natural
England.

The Council's Ecological Advisor has stated that protection for breeding birds should
be secured by condition.

The habitats on site are suitable for hedgehog which is a Priority Species. The
following reasonable avoidance measures should be put in place and secured by
condition to ensure that there are no adverse effects on them:



Page 68

All trenches and excavations should have a means of escape (e.g. a ramp);

Any exposed open pipe systems should be capped to prevent mammals gaining
access; and

Appropriate storage of materials to ensure that mammals do not use them.

As set out in the submitted Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, it is considered that bat
and bird nesting boxes should be provided on site and be secured by condition.

The Proposed Site Plan shows the area of western immature woodland and southern
hedgerow would be largely retained which is welcomed and will allow for the site to
retain its habitats with the most ecological value.

The attachment of conditions securing the above would ensure that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of ecology in compliance with Policy GE21 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan and Policy CS20 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.9 Trees and Landscape Impacts

The application is accompanied by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and a Tree
Constraints Report.

The proposed development would result in the loss of some trees to facilitate the
construction of drainage attenuation, however the application is accompanied by a
detailed landscaping scheme for the wider site which would assist in softening its
overall appearance. The proposed landscaping scheme is considered to adequately
compensate for any loss and would ensure that the site has a satisfactory
appearance. A condition securing the implementation of the landscaping scheme
along with appropriate maintenance is suggested. As suggested at 6.3, the retention
of hedgerows should be secured by condition.

The Arboricultural Impact Assessment sets out tree protection measures for the trees
to be retained. A condition securing the implementation of these measures
throughout the construction phase is suggested.

The attachment of the suggested conditions would ensure compliance with Policies
BE1 and GE27 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan.

6.10 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

Policy CS19 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan outlines some principles which
will be used to guide future development in relation to sustainable development and
climate change.

NPPF is supportive of the enhancement of opportunities for sustainable development
and it is considered that any future developments should be located and designed
where practical to incorporate facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low
emission vehicles.



Page 69

The incorporation of facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission
vehicles for this development is welcomed in the form of four parking spaces having
such provision. A condition is suggested to ensure the submission of a detailed
scheme, its implementation and subsequent maintenance.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered compliant with Policy CS19 of the
Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

6.11 Waste Management

Policies WM8 and WM9 of the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan are
applicable to this application along with policy CS24 of the Halton Core Strategy Local
Plan. In terms of waste prevention, construction management by the applicant will
deal with issues of this nature and based on the development cost, the developer
would be required to produce a Site Waste Management Plan. The Council’s Waste
Advisor has stated that the submission of a Waste Audit / Site Waste Management
Plan should be secured by condition.

In terms of on-going waste management, the proposed layout ensures that sufficient
space is available for such provision.

The proposal is considered to be compliant with policies WM8 and WMS9 of the Joint

Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan and policy CS24 of the Halton Core
Strategy Local Plan.

6.12 Planning Balance

There is a presumption in favour of granting sustainable developments set out in
NPPF where the proposal is in accordance with an up-to-date development plan.

Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:

I the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole.

It is considered that the development plan policies referenced are in general
conformity with the NPPF, therefore up-to-date and full weight should be given to
these.

The proposal would replace the existing temporary open storage use with a long term
solution which would be sympathetic to surrounding land uses and accords with the
policy requirements for the site’s location within a Primarily Employment Area as well
as securing potential future jobs for the Borough. It is considered that the proposal is
acceptable for the reasons set out in the report and that this proposal represents



Page 70

sustainable development which is in accordance with an up-to-date development
plan.

7. CONCLUSIONS

The proposal would replace the existing temporary open storage use with a long term
solution which would be sympathetic to surrounding land uses and accords with the
policy requirements for the site’s location within a Primarily Employment Area.

An appropriate access point to site from Hardwick Road would be achieved. Suitable
tracking for a HGV has been submitted to demonstrate that a vehicle can enter and
exit the site in forward gear. The layout demonstrates an appropriate level of car
parking, suitable pedestrian links and cycle parking provision.

The proposal is considered to be of an appropriate design and the elevations indicate
a mix of materials to add interest. A detailed landscaping scheme for the wider site
would assist in softening the site’s overall appearance. The proposal is considered to
be a well-designed development reflecting its location within the Astmoor Industrial
Estate.

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable.

8. RECOMMENDATION

Grant planning permission subject to conditions.

9. CONDITIONS

Time Limit — Full Permission.

Approved Plans.

Restriction on Use.

Restriction on External Storage — (Policies BE1 and E5)

Proposed Site Levels (Policy BE1)

External Facing Materials (Policies BE1 and BE2)

Implementation of Landscaping Scheme (Policy BE1)

Retention of Hedgerows (Policy BE1)

9. Implementation of Tree Protection Measures (Policy GE27)

10.Breeding Birds Protection — (Policy GE21)

11.Reasonable Avoidance Measures — Hedgehog — (Policy GE21 and CS20)

12.Bat and Bird Nesting Boxes Scheme — (Policy GE21 and CS20)

13.Provision & Retention of Parking and Servicing — (Policy BE1)

14.Cycle Parking Scheme — (Policy BE1)

15. Electric Vehicle Charging Point Scheme — (Policy CS19)

16.Implementation of Travel Plan — (Policy TP16)

17.Implementation of Pedestrian Link to Busway — (Policies TP7 and TP15)

18.Implementation, Maintenance and Management of Sustainable Urban
Drainage Scheme — (Policies PR16 and CS23)

19. Foul and Surface Water on a separate system — (Policies PR16 and CS23)

20.Waste Audit — (Policy WM8)

©ONOOGRWON =~



Page 71

10.BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.

The submitted planning applications are background papers to the report. Other
background papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are open to
inspection by contacting dev.control@halton.gov.uk

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019);

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015; and

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively with
the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.

APPENDIX 1 - Full Consultation Responses.

1.

Highways and Transportation Development Control.
HIGHWAYS RESPONSE- NO OBJECTION

Further to your consultation we have considered the proposed application as the
Highway Authority and would make the following comments;

PARKING

For a development of this size the UDP would require a maximum parking provision
of 60 spaces. The applicant has proposed 61 which would be acceptable.

TRANSPORT STATEMENT

4.2.3 The proposed access arrangement is shown in Drawing P20029-001 in Appendix D. A New 2m wide
footway will be provided on the north-west corner of the Hardwick Road junction with the Busway,

with this footway continuing into the site.

It will be necessary for the developer to enter into an appropriate agreement with the
Highway Authority in order for this welcomed pedestrian infrastructure to be
constructed.

The trip generation does not flag up any real concerns and the existing highway
infrastructure around Astmooor Road and its junctions with the expressways would
not appear to be adversely affected.


mailto:dev.control@halton.gov.uk

Page 72

TRAVEL PLAN

The Travel Plan offers very little by way of active encouragement of sustainable travel
modes. Car share is mentioned however there are no proposed incentives such as
specific car parking location mentioned. There is a plan to improve the walking routes
into the site which is supported by the Council coupled with a convenient access from
the busway for staff. Given that the site is to be divided into a number of units it is
understandably difficult to commit to any specific schemes to promote active travel
however we would wish to see a travel plan coordinator appointed to oversee a travel
plan for the site with specific aims and travel ambitions detailed.

LEVELS

The existing site has been raised substantially from its original position. The
application does not appear to provide any levels details and these would be required.
Is there an intention to keep the existing levels?

SERVICING

Submitted tracking drawings indicate that there are no highway safety concerns and

that a 10m rigid vehicle similar in size and dimensions to Halton Borough Council’s
refuse vehicle can enter and exit the site safely in forward gear.

Cycle Parking

Cycle parking would appear to be acceptable. We would advise that cycle parking
should be secure, covered and located in a convenient and visible location.

CONDITION

It will be necessary for the developer to enter into an appropriate agreement with the
Highway Authority in order for this welcomed pedestrian infrastructure to be
constructed.

. Contaminated Land Officer.

| have considered the land contamination implications of the proposed development
and have the following comments.

The following document has been submitted as part of the application;

Phase Il geotechnical assessment ,proposed industrial development, Astmoor Road,
Runcorn, ref 51687, SP Associates, September 2020

The report is primarily focused on the geotechnical aspects of the site and the
development, however, land contamination is included, and adequately assessed.



Page 73

The site history identifies a number of possible sources of contamination, the most
significant being the former Highfield Tannery that occupied a portion of the site.

A number of sample holes (trial pits and window sampler boreholes) were completed
across the site, targeting historical features and areas relevant to the proposed
structures. Soil and ground gases were analysed, and compared to relevant
assessment criteria. No significant contamination was identified that would have an
adverse impact on the proposed development.

The report concludes that no remediation or special measures will be required to
ensure the site is suitable for the end use.

| am in agreement with the report’s findings and, therefore, have no objection to the
proposed scheme.

. Lead Local Flood Authority

After reviewing 20/00536/FUL planning application, the LLFA has found the following:
The site is approximately 1.1ha in size, currently serving as a car park.
There is a number is existing public sewers on site.
The proposed development site is classed as ‘Less vulnerable’, according to the Table
2 of the Planning Practice Guidance: Flood Risk and Coastal Change (paragraph 066).
The proposed development will increase the total impermeable area of the site.
Review of flood risk in this location found that the proposed development is in Flood
Zone 1, at very low surface water flood risk and outside of the extents of reservoir flood
risk.
Review of watercourses in the area found the closest watercourses are the Manchester
Ship Canal (north of the site) and River Mersey (north of the Canal).
The Halton Borough Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessment shows the site is located
within a Critical Drainage Area.
The applicant has provided the following relevant documents:
o Design & Access Statement, prepared by MCAU, dated September 2020;
o Flood Risk Assessment & SuDS Drainage Strategy, prepared by Barnsley
Marshall, revision P01, dated 2020-06-08 (provided in two parts); and
o Operations & Maintenance Manual for SuDS Assets, prepared by Barnsley
Marshall, reference ARL-BML-ERD-ZZ-RP-C-0501, revision P01, dated 2020-
06-08.
The applicant has provided the following relevant drawings:
o Combined Drainage Layout, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-0500, revision P01, dated 05/20;
o Drainage Details. Sheet 1 of 2, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-Z2Z-DR-C-0501, revision P01, dated 05/20;
o Drainage Details. Sheet 2 of 2, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-0502, revision P01, dated 05/20;
o Proposed S185 Sewer Diversions. United Utilities Existing Sewers, prepared
by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-2700, revision P01,
dated 05/20; and



Page 74

o Floodflow Analysis, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-BML-ERD-
ZZ-DR-C-0520, revision P01, dated 05/20.

- The applicant carried out an assessment of flood risk within the Flood Risk Assessment
& SuDS Drainage Strategy document submitted. The LLFA have no objections to the
statements related to flood risk made within this document.

- The applicant stated in the Flood Risk Assessment & SuDS Drainage Strategy that
infiltration is likely not to be feasible due to existing ground conditions. It is proposed to
therefore discharge surface water into an existing public surface water sewer, which
discharges into the Manchester Ship Canal north of the site. Halton as LLFA have no
objection in principle to this proposal.

- The applicant proposes to discharge surface water at a controlled rate of 5I/s, into a
diverted United Utilities sewer. The LLFA have no objection in principle to this proposal.

- The LLFA also have no objection in principle to the operation and maintenance outlined
in the Operations & Maintenance Manual for SuDS Assets document.

Based on the above stated information, the LLFA considers the applicant has
assessed the flood risk and surface water drainage for the site adequately for a full
application stage.
The LLFA therefore have no objection to this planning application, providing the
following are appended to any approvals:

- Approved documents:

o Flood Risk Assessment & SuDS Drainage Strategy, prepared by Barnsley
Marshall, revision P01, dated 2020-06-08 (provided in two parts);

o Operations & Maintenance Manual for SuDS Assets, prepared by Barnsley
Marshall, reference ARL-BML-ERD-ZZ-RP-C-0501, revision P01, dated 2020-
06-08;

o Combined Drainage Layout, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-0500, revision P01, dated 05/20;

o Drainage Details. Sheet 1 of 2, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-0501, revision P01, dated 05/20;

o Drainage Details. Sheet 2 of 2, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-
BML-ERD-ZZ-DR-C-0502, revision P01, dated 05/20;and

o Floodflow Analysis, prepared by Barnsley Marshall, reference ARL-BML-ERD-
ZZ-DR-C-0520, revision P01, dated 05/20.

- Conditions:

o No development shall take place until details of the implementation,
maintenance and management of the sustainable drainage scheme in
accordance with the SUDS hierarchy have been submitted to and approved
by the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented and
thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.
Those details shall include:

= a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the
development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by, or
connection to any system adopted by, any public body or statutory



Page 75

undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the
sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

= attenuation structures and calculations to demonstrate a reduction in
surface water runoff rate of a minimum of greenfield rate.

4. Environmental Protection.

In respect of the above, the noise report submitted in support of this application,
reference JS/GM11295/0001 & dated 4/8/2020 refers to a conversation with
Environmental Protection on 24/07/2020, where it was agreed that a full noise report
was not required, due to the distance to the nearest noise sensitive property and the
proposed use of the site.

| can confirm this acceptable and therefore have no comments in respect of this
application.

5. Open Spaces.

This application does not require comments from Open Spaces. The proposals
appear to seek development on what is currently and area of hard standing, the land
is not HBC owned and the proposals do not appear to impact upon HBC
managed/owned land. There are no formal tree or Nature Conservation constraints
associated with the proposed development plot.

6. Regeneration.

ORIGINAL RESPONSE

With reference to the above planning, there is no indication regarding arrangements
for waste storage and collection. This location is front facing to Astmoor Road, and
must align with the Astmoor regeneration masterplan 3.1 Design Principles which
state:

Buildings should define the public facing edges of a site, rather than yard space or
parking. Building frontages should enclose private yard space away from public view
and present a ‘public face’ to adjacent roads. Facilities for the storage of waste should
not be visible from the public realm.

The plans evidence parking fronting Astmoor Road, which we would in time expect
to include a variety of contractors vehicles and assorted trucks as well as cars and
undetermined storage. Therefore this layout currently does not present a ‘public face’
with all servicing to the rear.

RESPONSE ON AMENDED SCHEME

No further comments / observations to make.



Page 76

. Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — Ecology and Waste Advisor.

Designated Sites

The development site is close to the following designated sites and Local Plan Core
Strategy policy CS20 applies:

Mersey Estuary SPA;

Mersey Estuary Ramsar site; and

Wigg island Local Nature Reserve

On this occasion, the development is unlikely to harm the features for which the sites
have been designated:

The development site is located approximately 1.6km from the Mersey Estuary
European sites, and in an area of already significant industrial and human
disturbance. The development does not require assessment under the Habitats
Regulations (2017);

The development site is 120m south of Wigg Island LNR but is separated by Astmoor
Road, raised earth embankment and tree line and Manchester Ship Canal, all which
act to reduce potential impacts during the construction period. The proposal will have
excavation and construction impacts which are consigned largely within the existing
curtilage, with the roadside location meaning fencing and pollution prevention
measures will be required and will ensure the retention of dust and construction-
related pollution on site; and

The development site has a history of vehicle storage, with the local area an
established industrial zone. The operation of an additional development will not have
significant impacts on Wigg island LNR.

Ecological Information

The applicant has submitted a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report in accordance
with Local Plan Core Strategy policy CS20 (Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, UES
Ltd., 31/07/2020, UES ref: UES03005/02). | advise the report is acceptable.

Breeding birds

Built features or vegetation on site may provide nesting opportunities for breeding
birds, which are protected and Local Plan Core Strategy policy CS20 applies. The
following planning condition is required.

CONDITION

No tree felling, scrub clearance, hedgerow removal or vegetation management is to
take place during the period 1 March to 31 August inclusive. If it is necessary to
undertake works during the bird breeding season then all trees, scrub, hedgerows
and vegetation are to be checked first by an appropriately experienced ecologist to
ensure no breeding birds are present. If present, details of how they will be protected
are required to be submitted for approval.

Terrestrial mammals




Page 77

The habitats on site are suitable for hedgehog which is a Priority Species and Local
Plan Core Strategy policy CS20 applies. The following reasonable avoidance
measures should be put in place to ensure that there are no adverse effects on them:
All trenches and excavations should have a means of escape (e.g. a ramp);

Any exposed open pipe systems should be capped to prevent mammals gaining
access; and

Appropriate storage of materials to ensure that mammals do not use them.

These measures can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition.

Hedgerows and woodland

The Proposed Site Plan appears to show the area of western immature woodland
and southern hedgerow will be largely retained. This is welcomed and will allow for
the site to retain its habitats with the most ecological value. The applicant should
ensure the hedgerow and trees are subject to suitable buffers and that any tree loss
is compensated by replacement tree provision in line with Local Plan Core Strategy
policies CS8 and CS21.

Waste- Waste Local Plan policy WM8

The proposal is major development and involves excavation and construction
activities which are likely to generate significant volumes of waste. Policy WM8 of the
Merseyside and Halton Waste Joint Local Plan (WLP), the National Planning Policy
for Waste (paragraph 8) and Planning Practice Guidance (paragraph 49) apply.
These policies require the minimisation of waste production and implementation of
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, including designing out waste and
minimisation of off-site disposal.

In accordance with policy WMS8, evidence through a waste audit or a similar
mechanism (e.g. a site waste management plan) demonstrating how this will be
achieved must be submitted and can be secured by a suitably worded planning
condition. The details required within the waste audit or similar mechanism is
provided in Part Two.

Biodiversity Enhancements

In line with the Conclusions of the submitted Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Local
Plan policy CS20, NPPF paragraph 175 and the NERC biodiversity duty | advise that
bat and bird nesting boxes should be provided on site. Any landscaping should also
be with native, berry-bearing species which provide a food source for birds.

Waste Local plan policy WM8

A waste audit or similar mechanism provides a mechanism for managing and
monitoring construction, demolition and excavation waste. This is a requirement of
WLP policy WM8 and the National Planning Policy for Waste (paragraph 8); and is
advised for projects that are likely to produce significant volumes of waste (nPPG,
paragraph 49). Implementation of such mechanisms may also deliver cost savings




Page 78

and efficiencies for the applicant. The following information could be included within
the waste audit (or similar mechanism) as stated in the Planning Practice Guidance:

the anticipated nature and volumes of waste that the development will generate;
where appropriate, the steps to be taken to ensure the maximum amount of waste
arising from development on previously developed land is incorporated within the new
development;

the steps to be taken to ensure effective segregation of wastes at source including,
as appropriate, the provision of waste sorting, storage, recovery and recycling
facilities; and

any other steps to be taken to manage the waste that cannot be incorporated within
the new development or that arises once development is complete.

Information to comply with policy WM8 could be integrated into a Construction
Environment Management Plan (CEMP) if one is to be produced for the development.
This would have the benefit of ensuring that the principles of sustainable waste
management are integrated into the management of construction on-site to improve
resource efficiency and minimise environmental impacts.

Guidance and templates are available at:
e http://www.meas.org.uk/1090
e https://www.gov.uk/quidance/waste
e http://www.wrap.org.uk/
e http://ec.europa.eu/growth/tools-
databases/newsroom/cf/itemdetail.cfm?item_id=8983

. Environment Agency.

No observations received.

. Natural England.

NO OBJECTION

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed
development will not have significant adverse impacts on designated sites and has
no objection.

Natural England’s further advice on designated sites is set out below.

Internationally and nationally designated sites

The application site is within 1.5 km of Mersey Estuary Special Protection Area (SPA),
Mersey Estuary Ramsar and Mersey Estuary Site of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSI).

Please see the subsequent sections of this letter for our advice relating to SSSI
features.


http://www.meas.org.uk/1090
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/waste
http://www.wrap.org.uk/
http://ec.europa.eu/growth/tools-databases/newsroom/cf/itemdetail.cfm?item_id=8983
http://ec.europa.eu/growth/tools-databases/newsroom/cf/itemdetail.cfm?item_id=8983

Page 79

Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)

In considering the European site interest, Natural England advises that you, as a
competent authority under the provisions of the Habitats Regulations, should have
regard for any potential impacts that a plan or project may have. The Conservation
objectives for each European site explain how the site should be restored and/or
maintained and may be helpful in assessing what, if any, potential impacts a plan or
project may have.

Based on the additional plans received, Natural England considers that the proposed
development will not have likely significant effects on the above designated sites.

We advise as there are measures in place within the design of the development to
capture any potential pollution via runoff before it is discharged to the Manchester
Ship Canal which has a hydrological to the above designated sites. We have no
objection to the proposed development, providing the application is undertaken in
strict accordance with the details submitted.

To meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we advise you to record your
decision that a likely significant effect can be ruled out.

Mersey Estuary SSSI

Our concerns regarding the potential impacts upon the Mersey Estuary SSSI coincide
with our concerns regarding the potential impacts upon the international designated
sites, therefore we are content that providing the application is undertaken in strict
accordance with the details submitted the development is not likely to damage the
interest features for which the site has been notified.

10. United Utilities.
Drainage

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system
with foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most
sustainable way.

The following comments are subject to technical approval for the pending S185
diversion proposals being granted.

Following our review of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment & SUDs Drainage
Strategy, we can confirm the proposals are acceptable in principle to United Utilities
and therefore should planning permission be granted we request the following
condition is attached to any subsequent Decision Notice:

Condition 1 — Surface water



Page 80

The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance
with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref No. Flood Risk
Assessment and SUDs Drainage Strategy Rev P01, Dated 08/06/2020) which was
prepared by Barnsley Marshall. For the avoidance of doubt and unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, surface water must drain at the
restricted rate of 5 I/s. The development shall be completed in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue
increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding

Condition 2 — Foul water
Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution.



Page 81 Agenda Item 3c

APPLICATION NUMBER &
PROPSAL:

21/00138/P3JPA — Prior notification for proposed
change of use from office to 19 no. flats (use class
C3) (PRIOR APPROVAL APPLICATION);

The Establishr

LOCATION: First Floor and Ground Floor Access, Former Co-
op Building, Lugsdale Road, Widnes, WAS8 6DJ.

WARD: Appleton

PARISH: None

AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S): | AGENT - Mr Alexis Anderson-Jones MRTPI,
Serviam Planning.
APPLICANT — Mr Piotr Szydlik, 20 Chatsworth
Road, Manchester, M18 7AF.

SITE MAP

Members should note that this application is to be determined by the Development
Control Committee due to the number of residential units being proposed. This is a
prior approval application under Schedule 2, Part 3, of The Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as Amended).



Page 82

This application proposes a change of use from offices to Class C3 (dwellinghouses)
which is permitted development under Schedule 2, Part 3, Class O of The Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as
Amended).

There are a number of instances set out below where this change of use is not
permitted development.

Development is not permitted by Class O where—

(b) the building was not used for a use falling within Class B1(a) (offices) of the
Schedule to the Use Classes Order—
(i) on 29th May 2013, or
(i) in the case of a building which was in use before that date but was not in
use on that date, when it was last in use DOES NOT APPLY

(d) the site is or forms part of a safety hazard area; THIS LAND IS NOT WITHIN
THE CONSULTATION ZONE OF A MAJOR HAZARD SITE OR PIPELINE.
DOES NOT APPLY

(e) the site is or forms part of a military explosives storage area; DOES NOT
APPLY

(f) the building is a listed building or is within the curtilage of a listed building;
DOES NOT APPLY

(g) the site is, or contains, a scheduled monument. DOES NOT APPLY

None of the above instances apply to these proposals.

These proposals are therefore permitted by Class O subject to the condition that
before beginning the development, the developer shall apply to the local planning
authority for a determination as to whether the prior approval of the authority will be
required as to—

(a) transport and highways impacts of the development;

(b) contamination risks on the site;

(c) flooding risks on the site;

(d) impacts of noise from commercial premises on the intended occupiers of
the development;

(e) the provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the
dwellinghouses,

and the provisions of paragraph W (prior approval) of this Part apply in relation to that
application (the procedure for dealing with applications for prior approval).

Publicity undertaken

The prior approval application has been publicised by two site notices posted at the
junction of Emily Street and opposite junction with Alforde Street on 11t March, ninety-
one neighbour notification letters sent on 11" March and a Press Advert in the Widnes



Page 83

and Runcorn Weekly News published on 18" March. Two representations have been
received from members of the public on this application and are summarised below:

e Parking arrangements in the area are already horrendous for existing
residents/businesses at best;

e The only legal parking is located on Alforde Street which would then affect
parking for existing restaurants;

e The building should remain as offices or storage space and not be allowed to
be converted into flats.

Members should note that the publicity on this application is due to expire on 8" April
2020 and the representation reported are those which had been received at the time
of writing the report. Members will be advised of any further representations that are
received.

Representations received from Ward Councillors

Clir Stan Hill - There are some outstanding features on the building frontage, in
particular the first floor windows which, although outstanding, are not suited to flat
dwelling. Anyone living with those would be frozen during the winter.

Car parking as the building presently stands is inadequate with vehicles parking on
pavements. Along with the existing uses there is a total lack of sufficient parking for
any future residents.

Clir Pamela Wallace - | am aware there is a need for change of use, and that the
developer may have permitted development rights under UK planning law and will not
require full planning permission. Also that grounds for opposing such as parking
concerns will be limited.

The building is positioned on a road that gets quite busy, so much so | requested
Traffic speed monitoring, with a view to installing a crossing or traffic calming
measures nearby at the request of concerned pedestrians using that road.

We have to, when considering any planning application, take into account the effects
it will have on neighbouring businesses and built up communities.

| have studied the area over a full week, and | am concerned about the amount of
vehicles that could be attached to this development and the lack of parking spaces
and highways impact.

It is ok this government changing planning laws to suit, but we must seriously take into
account the wider community impact and the problems it will bring with it.

Parking in neighbouring streets behind is always bumper to bumper, extra vehicles
parking in that area will cause mayhem and there is anecdotal evidence where lack of
parking spaces causes increased disputes as does increased pollution created when
looking for a space.



Page 84

We must also take into account vehicles parking for visitors or carers, plus the
environmental impact on safety in that area.

I am correct in stating the building is occupied at present, has this developer taken into
account where these businesses will go?

| suggest not only do we get views from Highways, but Cheshire Police.

| object to this development as there is not enough parking spaces within the curtilage
of the building footprint, and the impact on the surrounding area.

Clir Eddie Jones - As you will remember, | have already been in touch with you
expressing similar concerns to those of Clir Wallace, about lack of parking provision
for this proposal. On top of already identifiable parking issues and general traffic
congestion on old established and tightly packed surrounding roads. As well as being
a potentially unexpected difficulty for new residents it will certainly be an unwelcome
and surprising knock on irritation to existing residents. There would too be an expected
economic impact on surrounding businesses which rely on travel to them customers.
This is of course of particular concern in the current climate of attempted post
pandemic business reset. Local employment is dependent on a successful return of
businesses such as in this area and must not be hampered. Thank you.

Clir Ged Philbin - | think my Ward colleagues have expressed a number of potential
problems that will have an impact on the area and | agree with their comments.

Clir Angela Teeling - / too have been down there, with the citizen’s advice, a shop
and a restaurant being located on the ground floor, across the road is a pub, a chip
shop, a fireplace sales shop and news agents so there is a lot of foot fall. The
pavement isn’t the widest and added traffic and parking will be a factor as we have all
pointed out, plus it’s all on a bend. as Cllr Wallace states parking is already bumper to
bumper in all the streets.

I have also witnessed lorries getting stuck on that corner when they are trying to deliver
to the premises listed above, | have seen them try and do a U turn and on occasion
reverse into Alforde Street.

Also, having not seen the exact plans, what will be the disabled access to these flats
with the car parking so tight round there, is there a lift so anyone who has difficulties
climbing stairs could live in these flats. | feel that these are things we should be
pushing when builders approach us with applications.

| suppose in a nutshell, | have the same concerns as everyone else.
CONSIDERATIONS WITH THIS APPLICATION

As the proposals are permitted development, the principle of development is accepted
and the only considerations relevant to the determination of this prior approval
application are the five considerations set out earlier in the report.



Page 85

Transport and highway impacts of the development

The procedure for dealing with prior approval applications makes clear that the
National Planning Policy Framework is relevant to the subject matter of the prior
approval. In respect of transport impacts, it states that “development should only be
prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of
development are severe”.

The Highway Officer has acknowledged there is limited scope for comment associated
with a prior notification application and that Development Plan policies, knowledge of
the local highway network, current design standards and relevant legislation cannot
be fully applied.

The Highway Officer notes that the area is subject to high demand for parking and
withnessed examples of anti-social parking and contravention of parking restrictions.
These observations suggest that bringing the space back into use will add to the strain
already felt in the area and may well lead to road safety issues relating to anti-social
car parking.

That said, the Highway Officer recognises that there is an existing lawful use
associated with the unit and this must be considered. If maximum car parking
standards (as set out at Appendix 1 in the Halton Unitary Development Plan) were
applied to the proposal, the requirement would be 22 spaces where as for an office
use 30+ spaces would be required based on the available floor space.

Given that the existing office space could again become operational, with the potential
higher demand for parking referenced above, the proposed change of use to
residential is considered to be acceptable.

The Highway Officer has requested that the applicant consider cycle storage within
the development to encourage residents to choose this sustainable mode of active
travel. This request has been made to the applicant. A suitable cycle parking scheme
can be secured by condition.

In conclusion, the Highway Officer raises no objection and it is not considered that the
proposal would have a severe transport and highway impact.

Contamination risks on the site

Considering the proposal in respect of contamination risks and whilst the development
is for new residential units, the nature of the conversion and a lack of historical
potentially contaminative land uses mean that there is no requirement for detailed land
contamination assessment for the site.

Based on the above, it is not considered that as a result of the proposed change of
use, the site will be contaminated land as described in Part 2A of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 and the proposal is acceptable in this regard.



Page 86

Flooding risks on the site

The site subject of the application is located within Flood Zone 3 and is therefore at a
1% or greater probability of flooding from rivers or 0.5% or greater probability of
flooding from the sea. Based on the site being in Flood Zone 3, the application should
have been accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment. This has been requested from
the applicant so that the observations in respect of flooding risks on the site can be
sought from both the Lead Local Flood Authority and the Environment Agency.

Delegated authority is sought to determine this prior approval application following the
receipt of the necessary observations in respect of flooding risks.

Impacts of noise from commercial premises on the intended occupiers of the
development

The site is located close to the town centre of Widnes which includes a wide range of
uses. The proposed residential use is considered to be compatible with the adjacent
land uses and it is not considered that the impacts of noise from commercial premises
would have a significantly detrimental impact on residential amenity.

The provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the
dwellinghouses.

In terms of definitions, The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as Amended) states that a habitable room
means any rooms used or intended to be used for sleeping or living which are not
solely used for cooking purposes, but does not include bath or toilet facilities, service
rooms, corridors, laundry rooms, hallways or utility rooms. Adequate natural light is
not defined.

The separation distances contained within the Council’s Design of New Residential
Development Supplementary Planning Document would usually be a determining
factor when considering a planning application. As this is a prior approval application,
the Council cannot apply all its polices and guidelines in this instance, however must
still consider whether there is provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms
of the dwellinghouses.

Officers noted that a large number of the resultant relationships of habitable room
windows in this scheme ensure sufficient separation for light. There are however
some relationships (habitable room windows in flats 6,7,8,9 & 10) which do not provide
the level of separation usually expected as part of a planning application, however this
does not imply adequate natural light would not be available. Each duplex apartment
would be served by two habitable room windows which would be adjacent to the roof
of the adjacent outbuilding whilst being sufficiently elevated to allow in adequate
natural light in. The lack of outlook from these units is noted, however this is not a
consideration with this prior approval application. Based on the proposed location of



Page 87

habitable room windows it is not considered that a refusal on the basis of the provision
of adequate natural light could be sustained.

It is considered that the proposal demonstrates the provision of adequate natural light
in all habitable rooms of the dwellinghouses.

Representations received from members of the public and Ward Councillors

It is noted that the maijority of the issues raised relate to parking issues in the locality.
Whilst noting the high demand for parking in the locality, the Highway Officer raises
no objection and it is not considered that the proposal would have a severe transport
and highway impact which would warrant the refusal of the application. The
enforcement of parking restrictions is a matter for Cheshire Constabulary.

Cheshire Constabulary have not been consulted directly on this application as crime
and disorder is not a consideration with this application.

The energy efficiency of the existing windows is not a consideration with this
application.

The requirement for a lift within the building is not something which is a consideration
with this application and would be dealt with by the Building Regulations.

Conclusion

The proposal is considered acceptable in respect of four of the five considerations and
delegated authority is sought to determine this prior approval application following the
outcome of the flooding risks consideration.

Recommendation

Given that consultations are not yet concluded and the outstanding issue under
consideration, Officers are unable to provide a recommendation at this stage and to
do so could leave the Council open to criticism of pre-determination. Given the
restrictions imposed by the prior approval process it is not possible to defer this
application to a future Committee to allow full and proper resolution. Members will be
updated in relation to flood risk and any additional representation received at the
Committee meeting.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY FOR THE OPERATIONAL DIRECTOR - PLANNING,
POLICY AND TRANSPORTATION TO DETERMINE THIS PRIOR APPROVAL
APPLICATION IN CONSULTATION WITH THE CHAIR FOLLOWING THE
SATISFACTORY CONSIDERATION OF FLOODING RISKS ON THE SITE IS
SOUGHT.



Page 88

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The submitted applications are background papers to the report. Other background
papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are open to inspection by
contacting dev.control@halton.gov.uk

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

e The National Planning Policy Framework (2019);

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015; and

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively with
the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.


mailto:dev.control@halton.gov.uk

)
_..___f,\.\__ Development Control Committee
HALTON 12th April 2021

BOROUGH COUNCIL

/i

(?8 eéked

3 e
1
‘b

pg LUGlI epuaﬁg



)
—~M\_ .
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

© Crown copyright and database rights [2021] Ordnance Survey 100018552

Application Number: 20/00445/OUT - Plan | A: Location Plan




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

T6 abed

Application Number: 20/00445/OUT Plan |B : lllustrative Masterplan




)
M\ _ .
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

-

',\\ P 2

Copyright Bluesky y o ;

Application Number: 20/00445/OUT Plan I C :Aerial Photograph




)
—~M\_ .
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

ricigan

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2A : Location Plan

B Crown Et;pyright and database righls;-[2021] Ordnance Survey 100018552




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

v6 abed

Possible attenuation tank location

New pedestrian access gate to bus stop

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2B : Site Plan




_h

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Block A - Proposed Front Elevation

G6 abed

Block A - Proposed Front/Side Elevation Block A - Proposed Rear/Side Elevation

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2C : Elevations — Block A




)
—~M\_ .
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Full Front Elevation (N.T.S) Block B

Block B - Proposed Front Elevation

96 abed

[ 00 [

Block A - Proposed Rear Elevation

1

Block A - Proposéd Side Elevation

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2D : Elevations — Block B



)
—~M\_ .
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Full Front Elevation (N.T.S) Block C

1
|

Block C - Proposed Front Elevation

—

Block C - Proposed Front Elevation

/6 abed

Block C - Proposed Side Elevation

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2E : Elevations — Block C




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proposed Full Front Elevation (N.T.S)

Black C
Tl | 'U
Ll Y
) 3 «Q
il (9]
010 [ 1] ). - ©
(00]
Block C - Proposed Rear Elevation
|
_
I 0 (1

Block C - Proposed Rear Elevation

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2F : Elevations — Block C



_h_
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee

LANDECAPE
swunon'e Mmmem«shomml a0d River Mersey and ast of Auncom i 5 park within
o a8 Sructon plaeting. Thie sieis feaced and wrosnsd 10 thasouth by 3 mature
red hedgerow, 3 soal wood bnd group of eardy manure tees and dense Srub 10 The west and sond 10 the noh which is forming an

rom The castof the st & less wel screened, having panial scrub pUwIh i the grans serge
D FADPOSALS

Landscape Proposals 1:500 @ A1 / 1:1000 @ A3

efocts |0 10ps0il voku s, 26015003 10050 10 beimporied 10 ersere There 5t keast 300me depth of 100501 inareas 1 be planied and 150mm
Cepth 1 arexs tobe seeded,

4,500k in oreas 10 be planted n existing §rass aeasof rerstated 505 10 the west of the sie, 10 be thorowghly deg over 1o 300mm depth with suface
0 urned aver and buned to minimise chemical treatment of woads. Al roats and ones over T5mm (n any dimension are 5 be remowed

vmrmn “HIINB SR PLANTING
1 2 tobels)

40-600m aed 8)-100cm bighbare root.
of %1%

: n-unnumn-uul narge

Dsed developmentinchyies the COTSIICtion of HEw CommEial Ui, paking. ccessinrasuire 30 drainoge, nduding e irstalaticn o 3. Panteg & be in s 100mem wider and deeper thn pot siow ard bare 1o planéa notch ummn an LT, Lor Hahapud nolch,

» st feruation tank 1 the west of the sie . Therw s a0 edving network of Uil e and wrvices scrous the st snd ntalstion of propoms

4. Al plants torecenw dow rekease lert buer ot tirw of plantng.

sl drainge wil miri e s ks i ece -‘INnvw-Aobvplwv‘C- Zrinage tark 10 the went of 5, Al evergreen 5pecies 10 be treated with antid tafore aed aherplandrg.
od rerw wervice removel of part of of plnting wil to 6 Al plants 1o by nmueﬂwihMmwmum.eubm—mlmlm«mv\bumlmmv fex and Conylus and dpproperione stake for
1 between the Sk Caton and Astmoor mwmwmuon«muwm wpport n rrwd ade bark mulch 1o TSmm depth 1o wikh of planting.

on wih the woodlard remoal, the remmarder of the oep wil be selectvely thinned 10 remoe pocr e sspEemed pecimens, In
onwith the Statwrrent, referwnce 115550200 The mpart s detals bew protection
1or the remain ng trees U ring Consyumon

.mwmuummacmwmmmmmmn sresning of the dleml-'(lme:ulmln;mme e fronsage with Astnoor Road
g wreb plnting ot 0 an wd TS t0be recsned, being Mantaned with 3 Im
the fnos and up 10 1.5 wide. A proposed hedgerow within the leIdbu.um infrautractur connections (o be mece wth the s i
Trwe planting siong the ste ferce with Aatmoor Fosd & desgrad to slow wiews 1110 the ute from the bighway, whist schancng green

PACPIID MEAVY STANCMAD TRLE PLANTING

1. Bucavene T

2. Ptk 0 5ubrs035 101 backTling ey u«m of pit

3, Drive two 750 dia stabes 150mm i000 base of pX a0d out off £00 Sevel, plant trees.
fold tres n uprght poaition. Al stakes ard bars 1o be b ssese orieseson, perais wih s ferce.

break up sides and base 10 250mm depth

Twith 008 bar ngto

4. Mix extovined 10ps0iEs with proprietary tree and shiub compost 3t rate of 50/50 mix by wolume 10 advieve total 300mm depth 1opsci] for baddi¥ing:

Traert AN show release fertiser tatdets N0 DackTl arcurd 1000 per PR BaGAT with subisod up to 300MM befow ground kevel withautsols

wncaveted from pit and amedorated topol n 150mm leyer; m-a-m-ux s speces around roctx; baddl o grourd level.
o of trem

Aure hrks, Further plerting within the ute o ther ude of the scons wil from ard ntegrate g3 bark mukch 1o TSmm depth 1o 1m
ttng. Nt B tssh specin haws been 10 the e h .
PROPOSED HEDGERDW PLANTING
1. Pant hedgerow 2m from fence in trench 1m wide and 1o S00mm depth @ single species gowpsof 3-7 and stagger planted in Souble row ot 5 plants
Hirg o somply with BSTI36 Redweart parts for Nersery Siock per metre.
Fanarg, plantng and shal be carried cut in 2. Bock Tl with soil escvated from tench and fim
| Landscape Operadons 3 Envsure al plasts are staght andupright
55hal be poskioned i acooriance with 55337 mlnrce n Aeltion 10 Design, Demoition and Consinuction and 85 85452014 Trees from 4. Al plarts torecenw dow release lert bur ot m-d plantng.
w 0 thelandsage 5. Al evergreen spec o be treeted teform and atterplanting.

1w fobe G trees plasted wehin 5m of undergrourd o overhesd wrvices.

E OF IN® LEMENTAT 0N

Lape rENS1NeMEnt Shal be Carried out in the first vailbie 568500 after COMEIEToN OF CONSINACTOR, when weather ORIToNs are suitable
B Octcber 1o Mardh

§-Aprd 1o Ny

FANCE
sheub remowal to n rroect aed ard cutuid thw bird rmting
g vemecn. Radersl vagetation 10 the wemt for heciperow and insbrub areas wi be cit down 1o ground level and groend prepared for
Flargegto the north and north east boundary is 10 be ocally deared o proposed ing locations 1o et pisand
Emowed from sie.

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL

&M ;imxobenmued wit Tubex wwsmm. estabishment wih Lagger shivb size guands for Bes and Corylus 3nd appropriane stabe for
20! 0/
LA Span Muu rade bark muleh 1o 7$m depth 1o wlhummou

stromG

1, Avess 0 be seededto be g Aowing cormus wih and toensure mammying in of levels. Al ones aver S0me i 3oy
Gmersiontobe removed

2.50i% 00 be workied 10 2 SEh suiable for seeding

s cwer Gk o e wih tmorgate e orequive et at

Sgimt
4 Aredn w0 be resoaded # grass, 10 e sown with ow maknomance fescue o Genminal Amenty AL mixor similr 31 50 m".
MaNTOUCE

66 abed

planting 10 the utw
boundary ferce and & to be rwisd red and wpp emented
with exirs heary stardard tree planting and exiving gage
phacted up with & sTilr species i

Existing trees within the centre of the group 10 the west of
he sie wil be removed 10 accommodate the atteniason
tank. Gops i roadsde plnting 10 werge 10 the Tront of the
she 0 beplanted Mith 2 sirilar spacies matocreate a
contimous planting bed

Plan 2G : Landscape Plan



_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

N g —— A ) - - e

norfh //144:.:_ ——‘__~_\_'-___—~_-_'——_ _ ) . - - -

EXISTING

_~"HEDGEROW .~

5 Carpinus betulus
~astigiata’ o site frontage

T\
= aseme

\ "
daent

. @\ 6 Betulo pendula

‘ o e
| | ) .L‘v. T T — 1 = e ——AN
gy =R 2 e
g“"’_AI ! T By i im | 1 LS Y — e
2 | etcament 1" B A e -
—4 4 Cosel ——

M
e v 4 Carpinus betulus
'Fastigiata’

00T abed

238

0}k

f
Y
—f
Al
|
|
|l

Application Number: 20/00536/FUL Plan 2H : Planting Plan



' —N\_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL
WJ’. : P L R oG
5 o A " -

TOT 9bed

Application Number 20/00536/FUL Plan 2l : Aerial Photograph




)
M\ _ .
HAL})N Development Control Committee

‘El@&l
© Crown copyright and database rights [2021] Ordnance Survey 100018552

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3A : Location Plan




s —N\_

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee

(_,_’—'"f-f,—ﬂ =] (=] =] =] =}
.—o—-"""’/ _F-’f"lL
| r—'—-"-' i Landing 1@‘\\ o s i L P
i\
? /\ v > .
- F r '—T -
g ?% o -‘ o
\ Hall :‘x'n-u _%2.“ Landing Hall
Q n

=)
Q

«Q

\, b. (D
=

\ = Main Hall o
Q @

\\\QK | ‘ IT Training
= Q_\ ‘ | Room
e e e S s S 1 ™

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

p S
T T T\ e T B N e T p—
. \ \ 1
‘.l“n,] ; |2 l \\n "\H ¥ Room 1 { ” Room 2 *\‘\
\ Y I A\Y
Al , ) i) 1\
2.1,
EXISTING OUTBUILDING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING OUTBUILDING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA

Plan 3B : Existing Floor Plan



_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

mum gamm i HE T Yy
B 0 [0 DS @ e ) 68 ) 6

0T obed

EXISTING SECTION 1 -1 EXISTING SECTION 2 - 2

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3C : Existing Front Elevation




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

i @ § /[ EEEE
il

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

GOT obed

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3D : Existing Side & Rear Elevations




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Lower Level Out Bullding :
[
| —
" e
| o o " R — o
ousGE Lo Louwe ) LOUWaE ¢ Louwee sl acoaoows
1 nrCHeN T RITCAN TN aToaN
- | AATS AT FLATS FLAT Y FLAT 10 SEE M NI'
| jo .
Landing un | AZZA
Storage rr— g o —— — —
— ] i s 1 FOR DETAILS |
! : : : g ==
- | :
= = Lobby |
Lot | ¢ @ % ° oe
ok ° s —m s 0O rridor — — — — — — ——— — — *——— =
L 7 & == acDacou ¢
-1 an®
- T | " ‘ -U
- LoumaE |
- Hall Storage | 1 Storage Landing e < QJ
::v:q'u i S - I R & J & %
- 1 a B
sensoce Y - | : H
. . | — o
e =) = == | i o
FLATS AY, | it Loumae
-] | 1 FLAT
§ s | \!"
P
P | a Y Landing |_ e
nm‘mnl | o s —e— - |@ A
nATe | - - | |
wrmoows /| Comas | — | Y e S
RITHEN i i s s
nars | _ 55 ’ = e
o wacven e oy - o == wovcrn
s b AAT 12 FLAT 13 FLAT 14 | | i FLAT %5
| i | oamd e
|
|

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3E : Proposed Main It Floor Plan




_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

PROPOSED MEZZANINE FLOOR PLAN 1

/0T 9bed

PROPOSED MEZZANINE FLOOR PLAN 2

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3F : Proposed Mezzanine Floor




)
—~M\_ .
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Copyright Bluesky

Application Number: 21/00138/P3JPA Plan 3G :Aerial Photograph




	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3a 20/00445/OUT - Outline application, with all matters reserved, for a B2/B8 development including ancillary office space/staff facilities (Use Class B1) with associated loading bays, HGV/car parking, landscaping, pedestrian/cycle connections and associated infrastructure on land off Newstead Road bounded by the London & Western Railway & Ditton Brook, Widnes
	3b 20/00536/FUL - Proposed employment development comprising 13 units totalling 2545 sq metres to provide E(g), B2 & B8  uses on land to the west of junction between Hardwick Road and Astmoor Road, Runcorn, Cheshire
	3c 21/00138/P3JPA - Prior notification for proposed change of use from office to 19 no. flats (use class C3) (PRIOR APPROVAL APPLICATION) First Floor and Ground Floor Access, Former Co-op Building, Lugsdale Road, Widnes, WA8 6DJ
	3d Plans

